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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS
This report contains forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements are contained principally in the sections entitled “Description of
Business,” “Risk Factors,” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” These statements involve known and
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future
results, performances or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, the
factors described in the section captioned “Risk Factors” below. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terms such as “anticipates,”
“believes,” “could,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “may,” “plans,” “potential,” “predicts,” “projects,” “should,” “would,” and similar expressions intended to
identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements reflect our current views with respect to future events and are based on assumptions and
subject to risks and uncertainties. Given these uncertainties, you should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. These forward-looking
statements include, among other things, statements relating to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

our ability to secure sufficient funding and alternative source of funding to support our current and proposed operations;
our anticipated growth strategies and our ability to manage the expansion of our business operations effectively;
our ability to maintain or increase our market share in the competitive markets in which we do business;
our ability to keep up with rapidly changing technologies and evolving industry standards, including our ability to achieve technological advances;
our dependence on the growth in demand for our products;
our ability to diversify our product offerings and capture new market opportunities;
our ability to source our needs for skilled labor, machinery, parts, and raw materials economically; and
the loss of key members of our senior management.

Also, forward-looking statements represent our estimates and assumptions only as of the date of this report. You should read this report and the
documents that we reference and file as exhibits to this report completely and with the understanding that our actual future results may be materially different
from what we expect. Except as required by law, we assume no obligation to update any forward-looking statements publicly, or to update the reasons actual
results could differ materially from those anticipated in any forward-looking statements, even if new information becomes available in the future.
Use of Certain Defined Terms
Except where the context otherwise requires and for the purposes of this report only:
•
•
•
•

the “Company,” “FPH,” “Flux”,” “we,” “us,” and “our” refer to the combined business of Flux Power Holdings, Inc.,
formerly Lone Pine Holdings, Inc., a Nevada corporation and its subsidiary, Flux Power, Inc. (“Flux Power”), a California corporation;
“Exchange Act” refers the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;
“SEC” refers to the Securities and Exchange Commission; and
“Securities Act” refers to the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

PART I
ITEM 1 — BUSINESS
Overview
We design, develop and sell rechargeable advanced energy storage systems. We have developed an innovative high power battery cell management
system (“BMS”) and have structured our business around this core technology. Our proprietary BMS provides three critical functions to our battery systems:
•

Cell Balancing: This is performed by adjusting the capacity of each cell in a storage system according to temperature, voltage, and internal impedance
metrics. This cell balancing management assures longevity of the overall system.

•

Monitoring: This is performed by way of a physical connection to individual cells for monitoring voltage and performing calculations from basic metrics to
determine remaining capacity and internal impedance. This monitoring assures accurate measurements to best manage the system and assure
longevity.

•

Error Reporting: This is performed by analyzing data from system monitoring and making decisions on whether the system is operating out of normal
specifications. This error reporting is crucial to system management as it ensures ancillary devices are not damaging the storage system and will give
the operator an opportunity to take corrective action to maintain long overall system life.

Using our proprietary BMS technology, we are able to offer completely integrated energy storage solutions or custom modular standalone systems to our
clients. In addition, we have also developed a suite of complementary technologies and products that accompany and enhance the abilities of our core BMS
products to meet the needs of the growing advanced energy storage market.
Current Business Strategy
We are currently primarily focusing on the lift equipment with dealers/distributors, and secondarily, with the non-OEM micro-grid market. We anticipate
that these markets will be the strongest for aggressive revenue growth over the coming year. A Prototype Agreement with NACCO confirmed that our advanced
energy storage systems can address a broad range of lift equipment. However, the OEM market proved to be elusive and time consuming. In addition, working
exclusively with one manufacturer would significantly limit our market opportunity. As such, we have shifted our focus from an OEM market to a non-OEM market
which possesses fewer barriers to entry. Currently, we are working with various lift equipment OEM’s, their dealers and battery distributors to bring our advanced
energy storage systems to the lift equipment market which provides a more direct market path without the delays and issues that accompany an OEM’s worldwide deployment of new energy solutions for lift truck equipment.
The micro-grid market includes working with companies like Powerful Battery Systems Inc. to provide mobile and man-portable advanced energy
storage to act as gas generator replacements and convenient mobile power for lighting, disaster preparedness, communications and water filtration. We have
demonstration units currently being evaluated by the U.S. military providing us with their assessment and feedback. Additionally, we have placed solar, grid-tie
energy storage in an office setting facility to evaluate the results of the output to meet operational needs. The Company has also developed a suite of
complementary technologies and products that accompany their core products. Sales during the twelve months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 were primarily to
customers located throughout the United States.
History
Flux Power Holdings, Inc. (“Flux” or the “Company”) was incorporated as Olerama, Inc. in Nevada in 1998. The current business operation, known as
Flux Power, was incorporated in October 2009 to exploit the lithium battery solution market for small electric vehicles and began shipping prototype product in
the second quarter of 2010 while continuing to develop the Company’s intellectual property portfolio.
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Since its incorporation, there have been several name changes, including the change in January 2010 whereby the name of the Company was changed
to Lone Pine Holdings, Inc. Following the completion of a reverse acquisition on June 14, 2012, as described below, the Company’s operations have been
conducted through its wholly owned subsidiary, Flux Power, Inc. (“Flux Power”), a California corporation.
On May 23, 2012, in connection with the reverse acquisition, Lone Pine Holdings changed its name to Flux Power Holdings, Inc. (“FPH”) a Nevada
corporation. The transaction has been reflected as a reverse merger where FPH was the surviving legal entity after the merger. Flux Power remained the
accounting acquirer. The merger has been accounted for as a recapitalization as of the earliest period presented. Accordingly, the historical condensed
consolidated financial statements represented are those of Flux Power.
Reverse Acquisition of Flux Power Inc.
On June 14, 2012, we completed the acquisition of Flux Power (the “Reverse Acquisition”) pursuant to a Securities Exchange Agreement dated May 18,
2012 (“Exchange Agreement”) by and among Flux Power, and its shareholders, Mr. Christopher (“Chris”) Anthony, Esenjay Investments, LLC, and Mr. James
Gevarges (collectively the “Flux Power Shareholders”). In connection with the Reverse Acquisition, we purchased 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of
common stock of Flux Power from the Flux Power Shareholders in exchange for 37,714,514 newly issued shares our common stock (“Exchange Shares”) based
on an exchange ratio of 2.9547039 (“Share Exchange Ratio”). As a result of the Reverse Acquisition, the Flux Power Shareholders collectively owned
approximately 91% of the issued and outstanding shares of our common stock, and Flux Power became our wholly-owned operating subsidiary.
Effective July 1, 2013, our principal executive office is located at 985 Poinsettia Avenue, Suite A, Vista, CA 92081. The telephone number at our
principal executive office is (877) 505-3589 (FLUX).
DESCRIPTION OF OUR BUSINESS
Our Business
We are in the business of energy storage and battery management. In October 2009, we started to develop technologies for the advanced energy
storage market and began shipping prototype product in the second quarter of 2010 while continuing to develop our intellectual property portfolio. In 2011, we
began shipping Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards validated products and then started shipping ancillary products to enhance our overall product line.
Focusing on cell management of large format lithium cells, our technology dramatically extends the battery system life, lowering the overall cost of ownership to
a level which makes lithium competitive with lead-acid in numerous applications. Flux has spent over three years developing lithium battery energy storage
technology, including shipping over 14 Megawatts of power in a variety of applications ranging from electrical vehicles, electric boats, and various industry
specific applications.
Industry Background for the Energy Storage Market
The energy storage market has grown over recent years from one mostly reliant on lead-acid technologies created in the 1800s to one leveraging
advanced chemistries and the corresponding ability to store more energy in less space. Back-up power has increasingly grown to depend on telematics to
accurately gauge system health. Electric vehicles have adopted lighter weight energy storage to increase range and payload abilities and grid management
applications have sought to increase the cycle life of their systems to assure better returns on their investments over the long term. We believe that all of these
needs will cause the advanced energy storage market to grow exponentially over the next five (5) to ten (10) years.
Electric Vehicles
Electric vehicles are displacing traditional combustion vehicles for utility and passenger vehicle needs at an ever-growing rate as electric vehicle
technology becomes more advanced and costs come down. Utility vehicles like lift trucks and service vehicles are a natural fit for electric power as they are often
operated in confined or congested spaces where excess emissions from combustion vehicles is difficult to manage. Moreover, lowering these combustion motor
emissions is a goal of many Federal and state agencies, which has also spurred adoption of electric technologies in this space. This adoption is further assisted
by increased environmental consciousness on the part of consumers, which has increased sales of both hybrid electric and all electric vehicles. With the
decreased costs per mile of electric vehicles and greatly reduced emissions we believe that this market segment will see fast growth.

2

Lift Equipment – Material Handling Equipment
Lift equipment commonly called a forklift truck (also called a lift truck, a fork truck, or a forklift) is a powered industrial truck used to lift and transport
materials. The modern forklift was developed in the 1960s by various companies including the transmission manufacturing company Clark and the hoist
company Yale & Towne Manufacturing. The forklift has since become an indispensable piece of equipment in manufacturing and warehousing operations. Lift
equipment is produced in a range of power capacities from smaller lift type equipment such as a Walkie to a ride-on fork-lift. Lift equipment vehicles are not new
technology and don’t require new testing which can cause delays in product placement. The existing lift equipment market uses lead-acid batteries, which is
outdated technology and can lead to customer dissatisfaction with life cycles, performance, and additional maintenance costs. The replacement of lead-acid
batteries with lithium cells dramatically extends the battery system life, lowering the overall cost of ownership to a level which makes lithium competitive with
lead-acid in numerous applications
Grid Management Solutions
Grid management ranges from simple back-up power to devices that assure the performance and reliability of electric transmission and distribution grids.
In simple back-up power systems, the longevity of the system is crucial to maintaining up times and decreasing maintenance costs. Typical lead-acid battery
back-up power systems need cell replacement every two years, whereas advanced energy storage systems can last as long as ten years. Advanced energy
storage has seen gains in storage for peak-shaving to lower electricity costs and in shifting load demands in solar and wind power applications. Storing solar
energy and feeding back to the grid for credit is called “monetizing” the grid. Grid managements systems in transmission networks at every level need frequency
regulation to adjust for minute-to-minute frequency fluctuations in the grid due to demand and supply changes. Buffering with advanced energy storage systems
provide services that are more cost effective and efficient versus running power plants at sub-optimal operating levels to meet demand. This practice also frees
up power plant capacity normally reserved for frequency regulation and standby to produce more electricity and correlated revenues.
Battery Types
The most common battery technologies currently available to address the electric vehicle and grid management markets include the following:
Lead-acid Batteries: Lead-acid is one of the most developed battery technologies as it has been in use since the 1800s. It is relatively easy to
manufacture and is inexpensive and ubiquitous energy storage medium. Automobile manufacturers use lead-acid for starter batteries and lead-acid has been
used widely in electric vehicle and grid management solutions. Unfortunately, lead-acid batteries weigh more per unit of stored energy and have less power
output per unit mass versus advanced energy storage system technologies and thus are not well suited for advanced applications such as grid management
devices and electric vehicles. In addition, lead can be hazardous to the environment and there are efforts in many countries to phase this legacy technology out
over time.
Nickel Batteries: Nickel batteries, NiCd (nickel cadmium) or NiMH (nickel metal hydride) are durable and inexpensive technologies with relatively high
power. Unfortunately, cadmium is not a safe material and exposure can result in health hazard to humans and damage to the environment. An alternative to the
toxic NiCd battery is NiMH, which has greater energy versus lead-acid batteries and is more suitable to a wider range of applications. The NiMH was used in
early electric vehicles and some other bulk storage applications. Unfortunately, these chemistries are not as energy dense as advanced lithium batteries and thus
are now being leveraged out of the advanced energy storage system market by more energy dense chemistries.
Legacy Lithium Chemistries: Lithium batteries are more energy dense versus lead-acid, NiCd or NiMH batteries and are more volumetrically and
weight efficient. Introduced in the 1990s, lithium batteries made their way into portable electronics devices like laptop computers and cell phones. Unfortunately,
early lithium cobalt was prone to heat issues when arranged in large groups and if a battery cell were compromised a fire or explosion could result. This attribute
made early lithium batteries unsuitable for large grid management devices and electric vehicles. The cobalt in these early cells was also a more expensive metal
versus the compounds used in modern lithium batteries.
Advanced Energy Storage Lithium Batteries : The current generation of advanced energy storage lithium batteries was developed in the late 1990s.
These new chemistries improve upon energy density, volumetrics and weight metrics. There have also been great enhancements to the safety of these modern
lithium batteries. Heat and catastrophic failure issues do not plague advanced energy storage systems today. There has also been a significant increase in
modern lithium batteries’ cycle life. This makes today’s advanced energy storage systems the most conducive to electric vehicle and grid management use.
Other Technologies: Ultra capacitors and fuel cells have been proposed as potential replacements to lithium batteries. Ultra capacitors deliver high
power and have an extended cycle life but suffer from poor energy density. This makes them suitable for small burst power needs but not for grid storage and
electric vehicle devices. Fuel cells generate energy converting a fuel, typically hydrogen to energy. Fuel cell systems offer good energy density but are poor
performers in terms of power and cycle life. Fuel cell systems are suitable for devices with small power needs and short life spans but are generally not suitable
for use in electric vehicles and grid management devices.
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Current Advanced Energy Storage Application Needs
There are a number of features required of advanced energy storage applications today, such as:
Target Application Power: An advanced energy storage system must be able to deliver the electrical power required. Electrical power, measured in
watts, is the rate at which electrical energy is delivered. Electric vehicles, in particular, need enough power to assure smooth acceleration through a systems
discharge curve and grid management systems need enough power to meet load demands.
Duration of Charge: An advanced energy storage system must be able to provide a certain total amount of electrical energy. Total electrical energy is
measured in watt hours and is the product of power and time. Advanced energy storage systems with greater energy can perform for a longer duration when
compared to legacy technologies. The total electrical energy of an advanced energy storage system determines an electric vehicle’s range per charge and a grid
management device’s total power.
High Power: The energy that an advanced energy storage system can provide in total depends on the power requirements of the device in which it is
installed. When an advanced energy storage system delivers higher power, the available energy of the advanced energy storage system is less than if it was
delivering lower power. Advanced energy storage systems are better suited to deliver high power versus legacy lead-acid. For example, the higher power
required to push a vehicle like an electrically propelled boat through the water would be detrimental to legacy power technologies because their lack of ability to
operate as efficiently in high power applications. Advanced energy storage systems are able to supply a high power required without detriment to the energy
storage system.
Safe Operation: For almost all electric vehicle and grid management solutions the safety of an advanced energy storage system is of upmost
importance. Legacy lead-acid batteries tend to get hot with heavy operation and the toxic nature of these legacy chemistries can be troublesome in the event of a
cell breach. Advanced energy storage systems focus on chemistries that do not violently react with oxygen so a cell breach is less likely to result in an explosion
or fire.
Extended Life: The cycle life of an advanced energy storage system is the total number of times the system can be charged and discharged while still
performing to specification in the device installed. Legacy lead-acid technologies often do not perform to specification past a few hundred cycles in electric
vehicle or grid management devices. In comparison, an advanced energy storage system can last five to ten times as long in the same device.
Volumetrics and Weight: The weight and size of advanced energy storage systems are of crucial importance to both electric vehicle and grid
management devices. In electric vehicles, where packaging space is precious, a lightweight system can greatly enhance range. In grid management devices that
seek to extend current back-up power time benefit from better volumetrics and devices that shift load or peak-shave for improved average energy costs benefit
from small advanced energy storage systems that keep connections between cells at a minimum.
Lowest Cost: Advanced energy storage systems provide power dense solutions with extended cycle life which, together, equate to very cost conscious
solutions for most applications in the electric vehicle and grid management market segments. We believe that, in our products, advanced energy storage systems
can cost much less than legacy lead-acid technologies over the course of device operation.
Our Products and Services
We seek to gain market share in the advanced energy storage segment with our system technologies that extend life, add much needed safety
mechanisms, and communication and cycle life memory tools. We are focused on cell and system management tools. From our modular 24-volt energy storage
solutions to stackable charging, we provide the building blocks to create custom systems designed for a diverse set of applications. Whether it is vehicle or grid
storage systems, we provide capable systems that meet cost and performance targets which we believe, in many cases and based on the life cycle data of the
lead-acid batteries provided by the manufacturers; outperform traditional lead-acid technologies on both metrics. Our systems use lithium-ion cells that are
denser in energy than traditional lead-acid batteries, which allow our batteries to hold more charge over the same weight. In addition, our BMS protects the
lithium-ion batteries enabling the lithium-ion batteries to reach their full life and cycle potential and outlasting lead-acid based batteries which would have to be
replaced and thereby adding additional costs over the same time period. Our systems manage individual cells and their charge cycles, which generally allows for
more consistent discharge capability and ease of maintenance over an unmanaged battery. Through our BMS, we have enhanced battery systems overall to
provide safer, more reliable and extended life rechargeable energy storage systems for applications including motive, marine, industrial, military, stationary, and
grid management markets.
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Based on our experience, we believe that, compared to our competitors, our expertise in the large format energy storage market segment is paving the
way for lower cost and higher performance solutions.
BMS. Our proprietary BMS product provides three critical functions for battery systems: cell balancing, monitoring parameters and reporting errors to the system.
Our BMS monitors parameters and reports errors to other devices, which can then determine the best action to take to prevent failure. Another BMS function is
system cell balancing. The BMS will analyze each battery cell in the system during charge and discharge to determine which cells to balance to prevent
overcharging and allow the other batteries to catch-up and equalize capacity throughout the system.
Battery Modules. We supply high-power, energy-dense advanced energy storage modules for the electrical vehicles, industrial, governmental and grid storage
applications. Our primary product consists of the Flux Power 24-volt lithium pack and individual 3.2 volt cells in various sizes from 40AH to 300AH. We offer
varying chemistries and configurations based on the applications. Our battery modules are designed for our BMS.
Chargers. Our smart charging solutions are designed to interface with our battery management system. Our smart chargers consist of both air-cooled and liquidcooled chargers. These modular chargers can be stacked from 3kW – 300kW.
Application Integration. Flux Power is one of the few developers to successfully integrate lithium packs in a variety of applications including electric cars, lift
equipment to portable energy storage. The technology complexity of lithium requires knowledgeable engineering and testing.
Marketing and Sales
Customer Concentrations
We currently sell products directly to our customers, through lift equipment dealers, or through battery distributors. Our direct customers vary from small
companies to military integrators.
During the twelve months ended June 30, 2013, the Company had one major customer that represented more than 10% of its revenues on an individual
basis, or approximately $480,000 or 62% of the Company’s total revenues, which was a result of the Company recognizing deferred revenue as previously
reported. Revenue from our customer, Wheego Electric Cars (“Wheego”) was recognized on the sell-through method with their customer, which was completed
during the Company’s third quarter.
During the twelve months ended June 30, 2012, the Company had four major customers that represented more than 10% of its revenues on an
individual basis, or approximately $4,798,000 or 81% of the Company’s total revenues.
Technology
We believe our cell management and communication tools extend battery system life and improve system performance by managing individual cells in a
system, communicating individual cell conditions to ancillary devices, and communicating individual cell conditions to other devices which either require or supply
power. Whether it is vehicle or grid storage systems, we provide capable systems that meet cost and performance targets which we believe, in many cases and
based on the life cycle data of the lead-acid batteries provided by the manufacturers; outperform traditional lead-acid technologies on both metrics. Our systems
use lithium-ion cells that are denser in energy than traditional lead-acid batteries, which allow our batteries to hold more charge over the same weight. In addition,
our BMS protects the lithium-ion batteries enabling the lithium-ion batteries to reach their full life and cycle potential and outlasting lead-acid based batteries
which would have to be replaced and thereby adding additional costs over the same time period. Our systems manage individual cells and their charge cycles,
which generally allow for more consistent discharge capability and ease of maintenance over an unmanaged battery by:
— Managing individual cells within a system to maximize
Ø
Life Cycles
Ø
Discharge Rate
Ø
Depth of Discharge per Cycle
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— Allowing Cells to Communicate their State of Health to
Ø
Ensure Proper Charging
Ø
Protect the Cells from Over Discharge
Ø
Adjust System Parameters during Varying Temperature
— Enabling
Ø
Ø
Ø

other system components to adjust their functions to
Protect Drive Components from Damage
Tie Properly to Grid Power Systems
Optimize Charge Efficiency

— Other benefits of our battery packs
Ø
Lower total costs of ownership
Ø
Maintenance free
Ø
Lighter in weight
Ø
Longer life than lead-acid batteries
Production process
Except for some of the charger components, we design all of our own products in-house and outsource manufacturing and assembly when possible.
Batteries. Historically, Global Fluid Power Solutions, LLC (“Global”) has supplied most of our batteries based on our specifications and needs. However,
in order to respond to fluctuations in demand and product cycles, Global is not our exclusive battery supplier and we are free to outsource to other batteries
manufacturers that can meet our requirements and specifications. In the past we have sourced Lithium batteries from a number of suppliers. We are realigning
our battery sourcing to improve consistency, responsiveness, and quality. As a result, we have signed a non-exclusive supply agreement with Henan Huanyu
New Energy Technology Ltd, a Chinese company. In addition, since our battery management system and battery modules are not tied to any specific lithium-ion
battery chemistry, we can source our batteries from a variety of manufacturers to meet our needs as well as our customer’s needs. We continue to consider and
negotiate with other vendors for better terms, and may purchase our batteries from other vendors if their terms are more favorable.
Battery Modules and Packs . We design all of our battery modules and packs in-house. In addition, we occasionally design and assemble prototype
battery packs and storage systems for our customers.
Chargers. We currently buy chargers from several sources including Alcon, PDI and Current Ways, Inc., an entity owned by James Gevarges, one of our
major shareholders and director. Mr. Gevarges is also the Chief Executive Officer and President of LHV Power Corporation (“LHV Power”). During 2009, the Flux
Power entered into a cancelable Term Sheet agreement (the “Term Sheet Agreement”) with a LHV Power. Pursuant to the Term Sheet Agreement, Flux Power
was appointed as a distributor of LHV Power battery charging products allowing Flux Power to sell the products either separately or as part of an energy storage
solution. Additionally, Flux Power was required to develop a microprocessor control board, and the associated software to enable communication between the
parties’ respective products (“MCB”) which entitles Flux Power to royalties for any such units sold by the related entity. Pursuant to the Term Sheet Agreement
Flux Power may purchase the products at the then current price list for distributors. Further, under the Term Sheet Agreement, if LHV Power sells its products to
a different distributor Flux Power is entitled to a distribution fee equal to 20% of the gross profits on such sale. Under the Term Sheet Agreement, it was agreed
that upon completion of the MCB, and LHV Power’s sale of the MCB as part of its product offerings, LHV Power will pay Flux Power a royalty fee of $20 per MCB
sold, with such royalty fees capped at $200,000. This distribution and royalty fees were capped at a total of $200,000. The parties also agreed that the obligation
to pay the royalty fees and distribution fee would survive the termination or expiration of the Term Sheet Agreement and such obligation to make such payment
would terminate once the total payments of the distribution and royalty fee reached $200,000 (“Distribution and Royalty Fee Obligation”). Once the Distribution
and Royalty Fee Obligation has been satisfied, the parties agreed that Flux Power would no longer be required to provide any support for the MCB and the
parties would negotiate a new support fee upon LHV Power’s request. This cap has not been satisfied and the Distribution and Royalty Fee Obligation still
remains outstanding. The chargers are not currently under commercial production and therefore no Distribution and Royalty Fee has been received by Flux
Power. Under the Term Sheet Agreement, LHV Power has ownership of all intellectual property concerning the software developed under the Term Sheet
Agreement. On September 1, 2010, with our consent, LHV assigned the Term Sheet Agreement to Current Ways, Inc., a different company that is owned by Mr.
Gevarges. In connection with the assignment, Current Ways, Inc. assumed all of the rights and obligations of LHV Power under the Term Sheet Agreement. The
Term Sheet Agreement expired pursuant to its terms on April 1, 2011. However, Current Ways, Inc. is still subject to the Distribution and Royalty Fee Obligation
which will continue until the cap of $200,000 is satisfied or the parties agree otherwise. The parties were also subject to restrictions on the use and disclosure of
confidential information of the other party until April 1, 2013; as of June 30, 2013, these restrictions are no longer in effect. Pursuant to our standard purchase
order terms and conditions, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 Flux Power purchased approximately $29,000 and $85,000, respectively,
charger products from Current Ways, Inc., which purchases were not subject to the distribution fee or royalties under the Term Sheet Agreement.
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BMS. On August 1, 2009, Flux Power entered into a Manufacturing Implementation Agreement (the “Manufacturing Agreement”) with LHV Power.
Pursuant to the Manufacturing Agreement Flux Power granted LHV Power a right of first refusal to manufacture our battery management systems. Further, under
the Manufacturing Agreement, Flux Power agreed to pay for any specialized tooling LHV Power may require to manufacture Flux Power’s battery management
systems. Under the Manufacturing Agreement, Flux Power will retain ownership of all intellectual property developed under the Manufacturing Agreement. The
Manufacturing Agreement expires on August 1, 2014. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 Flux Power paid approximately $108,000 and
$263,000 respectively, to LHV Power pursuant to the Manufacturing Agreement. Although there are a limited number of manufacturers which could produce the
battery management system, we believe other manufacturers could produce the products on comparable terms. A change in manufacturer, however, could
cause a delay in manufacturing.
In-House Product Assembly:
BMS units, Chargers and CAN Current Sensors : Units are outsourced and programmed and tested at our facility before shipping.
24-volt Modules: We receive completed 24-volt module cases and lids. Cells are packed in the module cases, connected to BMS, and secured in
place. Lids with BMS installed are programmed and calibrated. Each full unit is sealed and tested before shipping.
Strategic Relationship with LHV Power : LHV Power is one of our early business supporters. LHV Power’s Chief Executive Officer, President and
owner, James Gevarges, sits on our Board of Directors and is one of our major shareholders. LHV Power has an advanced engineering team that has produced
products for Hewlett Packard, Dell, Black and Decker, Train, and Carrier. LHV has several contracts with manufacturing facilities in China and Taiwan. In the
past, our BMS units and CAN Current Sensor Builds are outsourced to LHV Power where they are built to industry standards. In addition, LHV has assisted us
with manufacturing assessments of our other products. Our relationship with LHV Power is governed by the Manufacturing Agreement with LHV Power as
described above under section titled “Production Process.” We may outsource the manufacturing of our BMS to other manufacturers after providing LHV its right
of first refusal under the terms of the Manufacturing Agreement. For the year ended June 30, 2013, and 2012, approximately 9% and 6% of our sales,
respectively, were attributable to products manufactured by LHV Power.
Volume sales will enable cost reductions by:
Manufacturability Optimization: We are currently building products to be as robust and full-featured as possible to meet prototype and small quantity
needs that are not cost-sensitive. With investment in design, these premium components hopefully can be value-engineered with the goal to continue to offer
full-featured devices at less than 50% of the cost.
Low Cost Version Designs : We will have a growing number of clients that do not need full-featured devices to make their products perform well. With
working capital, we believe that we can design low cost options for customers which can be marketed at a deeper discount to our current full-featured products.
Advanced Manufacturing Capabilities: We are currently seeking out advanced manufacturing relationships to further enhance our abilities.
Suppliers
We obtain a limited number of components and supplies included in our products from a small group of suppliers. During the fiscal years ended June 30,
2013 we had one supplier who accounted for more than 10% of our total purchases. LHV Power accounted for 34% of our total purchases.
During the fiscal years ended June 2012, we had one supplier who accounted for more than 10% of our total purchases. Global Fluid Power Solutions,
LLC, providers of lithium batteries manufactured in China, accounted for 56%, of our total purchases.
In the past we have sourced Lithium batteries from a number of suppliers. We are realigning our battery sourcing to improve consistency,
responsiveness, and quality. As a result, we have signed a non-exclusive supply agreement with Henan Huanyu New Energy Technology Ltd, a Chinese
company.
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Research and Development
Research and development expenses for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 were approximately $992,000 and $590,000, respectively.
Such expenses consist primarily of materials, supplies, salaries and personnel related expenses, consulting costs and other expenses. We currently perform our
research and development at our facility in Vista, California. We seek to develop innovative new and improved products for cell and system management along
with associated communication, display, current sensing and charging tools.
Competition
Our competitors are major domestic and international companies such as LG Chem, Matsushita Industrial Co., Ltd. (Panasonic), Sony, Toshiba and
SAFT, Valence, Dow-Kokam, Thundersky, Winston Battery, Altair Nanotechnologies, and Ener1. These competitors have received significant financial support
from private investors, public offerings and federal, state, and local grants, subsidies, and incentives and have heavily invested in manufacturing capacity for their
chosen markets. Our competitors, in general, have more funding and bigger sales, marketing and research efforts than we do.
We believe that we have several technological and business advantages over our competitors, which will lead to our success in the advanced energy
storage market. Our concentration on cell and system management tools has allowed us to compete with a much lower capitalization structure. Further, since our
BMS are not based on any specific cell chemistries, we can source cells from different manufacturers based on the performance needs and cost. This flexibility
in cell sourcing allows us to provide complete storage systems at much lower cost versus our current competition. We are also differentiated by the ability to
integrate battery packs successfully into a variety of applications.
Our marketing and sales strategy is to actively pursue the following market segments:
Lift Equipment – Material Handling Equipment: The advantage of the lift equipment market is that it is an indispensable piece of equipment in
manufacturing and warehousing operations. Lift equipment vehicles are not new technology and don’t require new testing which can cause delays in product
placement. The existing lift equipment market uses lead-acid batteries, which is outdated technology and can lead to customer dissatisfaction with life cycles,
performance, and additional maintenance costs. The replacement of lead-acid batteries with lithium cells dramatically extends the battery system life, lowering
the overall cost of ownership to a level which makes lithium competitive with lead-acid in numerous applications. We believe with marketing efforts we will be
able to reach larger target markets.
Grid Management Solutions : Our products’ telematics, modularity, longevity and low cost solutions fit with smart grid management solutions, peak
shaving devices, bulk storage, back-up power, and frequency modulation devices at every level of grid management. These devices have the longest integration
timelines, but have the potential to become our largest revenue component over time.
Military (Defense) and Municipal : Our products’ longevity, easy integration and telematics make it a fit for energy storage applications for both the
military and municipal markets. These markets have longer integration timelines but will become a healthy addition to our revenue mix over the next two years.
Electric Vehicles: Our products’ cost advantage, easy integration, automotive quality design, and Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards (“FMVSS”)
compliance make the Electric Vehicles Segment a desirable target. After small volume manufacturers, we will push into larger manufacturers.
Intellectual Property
Our success depends, at least in part, on our ability to protect our core technology and intellectual property. To accomplish this, we rely on a
combination of patents pending, patent applications, trade secrets, including know-how, employee and third party nondisclosure agreements, copyright laws,
trademarks, intellectual property licenses and other contractual rights to establish and protect our proprietary rights in our technology. In addition to such factors
as innovation, technological expertise and experienced personnel, we believe that a strong patent position is important to remain competitive. During the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2013 we received approval for one of our pending patents. We have an ongoing policy of filing patent design applications to seek protection for
novel features of our products and technologies.
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We have developed our intellectual property portfolio through our continued investment in research and development, and through our acquisition of
technologies from Epic Boat (an entity founded and controlled by Chris Anthony, our former Chief Executive Officer and current chairman of the board), Gottlieb
Inventions, and Joseph Gottlieb.
Prior to the filing and granting of patents, our policy is to disclose key features to patent counsel and maintain these features as trade secrets prior to
product introduction. Patent applications may not result in issued patents covering all important claims and could be denied in their entirety. As of June 30, 2013,
we filed patent applications in the United States, EU & China.
In connection with our BMS, we are actively pursuing patent applications relating to determining battery life and remaining battery life cycles. Patent
applications relating to these inventions will soon be filed with the U.S. Patent & Trademark Office. For certain applications represented above, foreign filings are
in process in key markets like the European Union and China. In addition, we have a number of trademark applications and registrations protecting the Flux
Power name and logo. These include Flux, Flux Power, and the Flux Power logo.
In addition, we intend to continue to file additional patent applications with respect to our technology and to seek protection of our intellectual property
internationally in a broad range of areas. We do not know whether any of our pending patent applications will result in the issuance of patents or whether the
examination process will require us to narrow our claims. Even if granted, there can be no assurance that these pending patent applications will provide us with
protection.
Government Regulations
Product Safety Regulations. Our products are subject to product safety regulations by Federal, state, and local organizations. Accordingly, we may be
required, or may voluntarily determine to obtain approval of our products from one or more of the organizations engaged in regulating product safety. These
approvals could require significant time and resources from our technical staff and, if redesign were necessary, could result in a delay in the introduction of our
products in various markets and applications.
Department of Transportation, National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA). The NHTSA is charged with writing and enforcing safety,
theft-resistance, and fuel economy standards for motor vehicles through their Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards. These Standards require manufacturers
to design their electrically powered vehicles so that, in the event of a crash, the electrical energy storage, conversion, and traction systems are either electrically
isolated from the vehicle's chassis or their voltage is below specified levels considered safe from electric shock hazards.
Vehicle designers and manufacturers are governed by the Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards program. We are not governed by this regulation, but
the vehicle manufacturers do need to comply with the standards.
Environmental Regulations. Federal, state, and local regulations impose significant environmental requirements on the manufacture, storage,
transportation, and disposal of various components of advanced energy storage systems. Although we believe that our operations are in material compliance with
current applicable environmental regulations, there can be no assurance that changes in such laws and regulations will not impose costly compliance
requirements on us or otherwise subject us to future liabilities. Moreover, Federal, state, and local governments may enact additional regulations relating to the
manufacture, storage, transportation, and disposal of components of advanced energy storage systems. Compliance with such additional regulations could
require us to devote significant time and resources and could adversely affect demand for our products. There can be no assurance that additional or modified
regulations relating to the manufacture, storage, transportation, and disposal of components of advanced energy systems will not be imposed.
Occupational Safety and Health Regulations . The California Division of Occupational Safety and Health (“Cal/OSHA”) and other regulatory agencies
have jurisdiction over the operations of our Vista, California facility. Because of the risks generally associated with the assembly of advanced energy storage
systems we expect rigorous enforcement of applicable health and safety regulations. Frequent audits by or changes, in the regulations issued by Cal/OSHA, or
other regulatory agencies with jurisdiction over our operations, may cause unforeseen delays and require significant time and resources from our technical staff.
Employees
As of June 30, 2013, we have ten (10) full-time employees. We engage outside consultants for business development and operations or other functions
from time to time. None of our employees are currently represented by a trade union. We consider our relations with our employees to be good.
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Legal Proceedings
We are not currently involved in any legal proceedings.
Other Information
Our Internet address is http://fluxpwr.com. We make available free of charge on our website our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form
10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as
reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Other than the
information expressly set forth in this annual report, the information contained, or referred to, on our website is not part of this annual report.
The public may also read and copy any materials we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC
20549. The public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains a
website at www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers, such as us, that file electronically with
the SEC.
ITEM 1A — RISK FACTORS
RISK FACTORS
An investment in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the risks described below, together with all of the other
information included in this report, before making an investment decision. If any of the following risks actually occur, our business, financial condition or results of
operations could suffer. In that case, the trading price of our common stock could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment. You should read the
section entitled “Special Note Regarding Forward Looking Statements” above for a discussion of what types of statements are forward-looking statements, as
well as the significance of such statements in the context of this report.
Risk Factors Relating to Our Business
Our independent auditors have expressed substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern.
In their audit opinion issued in connection with our financial statements as of June 30, 2013 and for the year then ended, our independent registered public
accounting firm included a going concern explanatory paragraph which stated there was substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. We
have prepared our financial statements on a going concern basis that contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course
of business for the foreseeable future. Our financial statements do not include any adjustments that would be necessary should we be unable to continue as a
going concern and, therefore, be required to liquidate our assets and discharge our liabilities in other than the normal course of business and at amounts different
from those reflected in our financial statements. If we are unable to continue as a going concern, our stockholders may lose all or a substantial portion or all of
their investment.
We have a history of losses and negative working capital and currently have no funds available under our credit facilities, and require
additional funding to support operations and provide working capital for growth.
As of June 30, 2013, we had a cash balance of approximately $20,000, negative working capital of approximately $408,000 and an accumulated deficit
of approximately $3,977,000. We have a history of losses and have experienced a lack of revenue due to the time to launch our revised business strategy. We
have experienced a decrease in our revenues and gross profit. Our revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, decreased approximately $5,158,000, or
87%, compared to the year ended June 30, 2012. Our gross profit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, decreased by approximately $1,145,000 or 99%,
compared to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The Company does not currently believe that its existing cash resources are sufficient to meet its anticipated
needs during the next twelve months. Our operations have been primarily funded through the sale of our securities and borrowings under our credit facilities. Our
continued operations and growth are dependent on our ability to complete equity financings, make borrowings under our credit facilities or/and generate
revenues. Since June 2012 we have been conducting private placements of our common stock and warrants to accredited investors in efforts to raise up to $4.0
million. To date, we have raised approximately $2,106,000, net, but are short of our target of $4.0 million, excluding transaction costs. In addition, for the twelve
months ended June 30, 2013, we have relied on our credit facilities to provide working capital and have borrowed approximately $2,468,000 under our existing
credit facilities. We have no availability under our credit facilities, our currently primary credit line holder, Esenjay Investments, LLC, is funding us as needed until
private placements are closed. The Company is currently pursuing additional sources of funding including, which could result from certain distributor
relationships, joint operating ventures, acquisitions or mergers. We expect to cover our anticipated operating expenses through cash on hand, collections on
additional customer billings and proceeds from the private placement of equity securities. However, there is no guarantee we will be able to obtain additional
funds in the future if required or that funds will be available on terms acceptable to us, or that shareholders will not experience dilution as a result of funds raised
through the sale of securities. If such funds are not available, management will be required to curtail its investments in additional sales and marketing and
product development resources and capital expenditures, which may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s future cash flows and results of
operations, and its ability to continue operating as a going concern.

10

Our substantial level of indebtedness and an event of default under existing notes and credit facility could adversely affect our business,
financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.
We have substantial indebtedness and we have relied on our credit facilities to provide working capital and have borrowed approximately $2,468,000
under our existing credit facilities. We have no availability under our credit facilities; however we have continued to borrow funds from Esenjay Investments, LLC
(“Esenjay”), in anticipation of negotiating our outstanding notes. Substantially all of our assets are secured under the notes due Esenjay as follows; revolving note
for $1.0 million (“Revolving Note”), additional note payable of $250,000 (“bridge note”) and line of credit for $1.5 million (“Credit Line”). In the event of default
under the Revolving Note, bridge note and Credit Line, the interest rate on unpaid balance will accrue at a default interest rate of 18%, 18% and 11%,
respectively, or the highest rate allowed by law (which is less). In addition, as a secured party, upon an event of default, Esenjay will have a right to the collateral
granted to them under the Revolving Note, bridge note and Credit Line, and we may lose our ownership interest in the assets. A loss of our collateral will have
material adverse effect on our operations, our business and financial condition. As of September 30, 2013, we have not paid the amount due under the
Revolving Note on the maturity date and are not in compliance with the terms of the Revolving Note. As a result, the unpaid balance is subject to a default
interest rate of 18% or the highest rate allowed by law (whichever is less) and Esenjay has a right to exercise its rights as a secured party. As of October 15,
2013, Company is in the process of renegotiating the Revolving Note, bridge note and Credit Line with Esenjay to extend the maturity dates through December
31, 2015. In addition, the parties are negotiating that further draws on the line of credit will be at a reduced interest rate. In addition, it is contemplated that
Esenjay will be granted an option to convert up to $400,000 of outstanding debt and interest to common stock at $0.06 per share by December 31, 2013, and an
option to convert outstanding debt and interest to common stock at $0.30 per share until December 31, 2015.
We have recently realigned our marketing focus to smaller number of products and selling to customers that do not require extensive product
development.
Since 2010, the Company has focused on providing customized solutions to larger OEM customers. Recent experience has shown that the Company
could achieve higher longer-term revenue by focusing on a smaller number of products and selling to customers that do not require extensive and lengthy
product development and negotiation periods. An example has been the recent decision by NACCO to pursue a much larger supplier that can provide extensive
resources to support lengthy prove-out requirements for one of their product areas. As a response, the Company has determined it will narrow its focus to
product segments including “lift equipment” and “micro-grid energy storage”. The Company feels that it is well positioned to address these markets, which include
applications such as industrial electric vehicles like lift equipment, tug equipment, back-up power, grid tie power, solar storage, electric service vehicles and pallet
drivers. However, the Company cannot guarantee that it will be successful in transitioning companies in these segments from legacy lead-acid technologies to
our advanced energy storage solutions.
Flux Power’s limited operating history makes evaluating its business and future prospects difficult and may increase the risk of your
investment.
There are risks and difficulties Flux Power faces as an early stage company with limited operating history. If Flux Power does not successfully address
these risks, its business, prospects, operating results and financial condition will be materially and adversely harmed. Flux Power began delivering its first battery
product and BMS in the second quarter of 2010, and as of June 30, 2013, we have 31 customers, almost all of which are in the Lift Equipment, Electric Vehicle,
Emergency Back-Up Power Supply, or Solar Storage market segments. Flux Power has a very limited operating history on which investors can base an
evaluation of its business and operating results can vary significantly.
Flux Power has not derived material revenues from its handheld or charger products, during the twelve months ended June 30, 2013, less than 5% of
its revenue was derived from such sales. Flux Power intends to extend the application of its battery products and BMS for industrial energy storage, government
applications and specialty applications. There are no assurances that Flux Power will be able to successfully extend the application of our battery products and
BMS into other targeted end markets.
Our success depends on the success of manufacturers of the end applications that use our battery products and BMS.
Because our products are designed to be used in other products such as lift equipment, our success depends on whether end application manufacturers
and their end dealers will incorporate our battery products and BMS in their products. Although we strive to produce high quality battery products and BMS, there
is no guarantee that end application manufacturers will accept our products. Our failure to gain acceptance of our products from these manufacturers could result
in a material adverse effect on our results of operations.
Additionally, even if a manufacturer or their end dealers decides to use our batteries, the manufacturer may not be able to market and sell its products
successfully. The manufacturer’s inability to market and sell its products successfully could materially and adversely affect our business and prospects because
this manufacturer may not order new products from us. Therefore, our business, financial condition, results of operations and future success would be materially
and adversely affected.
Lithium-ion battery modules have been observed to catch fire or vent smoke and flame, and such events have raised concerns over the use
of high-power batteries in electric vehicles.
We sell and supply high-power lithium based battery modules for the electrical vehicles and we intend to supply these lithium packs for industrial,
governmental and grid storage applications. Historically, lithium-ion batteries in laptops and cellphones have been reported to catch fire or vent smoke and
flames, and more recently, news have been reported that several electric vehicles that use high-power lithium-ion batteries have caught on fire which trigger
investigation as to the cause of the fires. As such, any adverse publicity and issues as to the use of high-power batteries in automotive or lift equipment
applications will affect our business and prospects since we sell and supply high-power lithium based battery packs for electric vehicle application. In addition,
any failure of our battery modules may cause damage to the vehicle or lead to personal injury or death and may subject us to lawsuits. We may have to recall
our battery modules, which would be time consuming and expensive.
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Current economic conditions may adversely affect consumer spending and the overall general health of our retail customers, which, in turn,
may adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations and cash resources.
Uncertainty about the current and future global economic conditions may cause our customers to defer purchases or cancel purchase orders for our
products in response to tighter credit, decreased cash availability and weakened consumer confidence. Our financial success is sensitive to changes in general
economic conditions, both globally and nationally. Recessionary economic cycles, higher interest borrowing rates, higher fuel and other energy costs, inflation,
increases in commodity prices, higher levels of unemployment, higher consumer debt levels, higher tax rates and other changes in tax laws or other economic
factors that may affect consumer spending or buying habits could continue to adversely affect the demand for our products. In addition, a number of our
customers may be impacted by the significant decrease in available credit that has resulted from the current financial crisis. If credit pressures or other financial
difficulties result in insolvency for our customers it could adversely impact our financial results. There can be no assurances that government and consumer
responses to the disruptions in the financial markets will restore consumer confidence.
We are dependent on a limited number of suppliers for our battery cells, and the inability of these suppliers to continue to deliver, or their
refusal to deliver, our battery cells at prices and volumes acceptable to us would have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects and
operating results.
Our battery cells, which are an integral part of our battery products and systems, are currently sourced from three manufacturers, two located in China
and one located in the United States. While we obtain components for our products and systems from multiple sources whenever possible, we have spent a
great deal of time in developing and testing our battery cells that we receive from these three manufacturers. We refer to these battery cell suppliers as our
limited source suppliers. To date we have no qualified alternative sources for our battery cells and we generally do not maintain long-term agreements with our
limited source suppliers. While we believe that we will be able to establish alternate supply relationships for our battery cells, we may be unable to do so in the
short term or at all at prices, quality or costs that are favorable to us.
Changes in business conditions, wars, governmental changes and other factors beyond our control or which we do not presently anticipate, could also
affect our suppliers’ ability to deliver components to us on a timely basis. Furthermore, if we experience significant increased demand, or need to replace our
existing suppliers, there can be no assurance that additional supplies of component parts will be available when required on terms that are favorable to us, at all,
or that any supplier would allocate sufficient supplies to us in order to meet our requirements or fill our orders in a timely manner. In the past, we have replaced
certain suppliers because of their failure to provide components that met our quality control standards. The loss of any limited source supplier or the disruption in
the supply of components from these suppliers could lead to delays in the deliveries of our battery products and systems to our customers, which could hurt our
relationships with our customers and also materially adversely affect our business, prospects and operating results.
Increases in costs, disruption of supply or shortage of raw materials, in particular lithium-iron phosphate cells, could harm our business.
We may experience increases in the costs or a sustained interruption in the supply or shortage of raw materials. Any such an increase or supply
interruption could materially negatively impact our business, prospects, financial condition and operating results. For instance, we are exposed to multiple risks
relating to price fluctuations for lithium-iron phosphate cells.
These risks include:
·
the inability or unwillingness of current battery manufacturers to supply the number of lithium-iron phosphate cells required to support our sales
as demand for such rechargeable battery cells increases;
·
disruption in the supply of cells due to quality issues or recalls by the battery cell manufacturers; and
·
an increase in the cost of raw materials, such as iron and phosphate, used in lithium-iron phosphate cells.
We may be unable to successfully execute our long-term growth strategy or increase our current revenue levels.
We can provide no assurance that our revenues will grow. Our ability to maintain our revenue levels or to grow in the future depends upon, among other
things, adequate capital to support current operations and the continued success of our efforts to maintain our brand image and bring new products to market and
our ability to expand within our current distribution channels.

12

Our success is highly dependent on continually developing new and advanced products, technologies, and processes and failure to do so
may cause us to lose our competitiveness in the battery industry and may cause our profits to decline.
To remain competitive in the battery industry, it is important to continually develop new and advanced products, technologies, and processes. There is
no assurance that competitors’ new products, technologies, and processes will not render our existing products obsolete or non-competitive. Alternately,
changes in legislative, regulatory or industry requirements or in competitive technologies may render certain of our products obsolete or less attractive. Our
competitiveness in the renewable battery market therefore relies upon our ability to enhance our current products, introduce new products, and develop and
implement new technologies and processes. Our battery system predominately uses lithium-iron phosphate cells. If our competitors develop alternative products
with more enhanced features than our battery system, our financial condition and results of operations would be materially and adversely affected.
The research and development of new products and technologies is costly and time consuming, and there are no assurances that our research and
development of new products will be either successful or completed within anticipated timeframes, if at all. Our failure to technologically evolve and/or develop
new or enhanced products may cause us to lose competitiveness in the battery market. In addition, in order to compete effectively in the renewable battery
industry, we must be able to launch new products to meet our customers’ demands in a timely manner. However, we cannot provide assurance that we will be
able to install and certify any equipment needed to produce new products in a timely manner, or that the transitioning of our manufacturing facility and resources
to full production under any new product programs will not impact production rates or other operational efficiency measures at our manufacturing facility. In
addition, new product introductions and applications are risky, and may suffer from a lack of market acceptance, delays in related product development and
failure of new products to operate properly. Any failure by us to successfully launch new products, or a failure by our customers to accept such products, could
adversely affect our results.
Flux Power has historically depended on a limited number of customers for a significant portion of its revenues and this dependence is likely
to continue.
We are dependent on one core technology and product category and limited products to generate revenues. We cannot assure you that these or other
future products will achieve customer acceptance to attain a level of sales to support our operating costs. Historically the vast majority of our product sales were
generated from a small number of customers, however we are concentrating on increasing our customer base in the lift equipment market to expand our product
placement. We currently do not have long-term agreements with any of our customers. Future agreements with respect to pricing, returns, promotions, among
other things, are subject to periodic negotiation with each customer. No assurance can be given that current customers will continue to do business with us. The
loss of any of our significant customers will have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and liquidity. In addition, the
uncertainty of product orders can make it difficult to forecast our sales and allocate our resources in a manner consistent with actual sales, and our expense
levels are based in part on our expectations of future sales. If our expectations regarding future sales are inaccurate, we may be unable to reduce costs in a
timely manner to adjust for sales shortfalls.
The market for our products and services is very competitive and, if we cannot effectively compete, our business will be harmed.
The market for our products and services is very competitive and subject to rapid technological change. Many of our competitors are larger and have
significantly greater assets, name recognition and financial, personnel and other resources than we have. As a result, our competitors may be in a stronger
position to respond quickly to potential acquisitions and other market opportunities, new or emerging technologies and changes in customer requirements. We
cannot assure you that we will be able to maintain or increase our market share against the emergence of these or other sources of competition. Failure to
maintain and enhance our competitive position could materially adversely affect our business and prospects.
Our business may be adversely affected by the global economic downturn, in addition to the continuing uncertainties in the financial
markets.
The global economy is trying to recover from a pronounced economic downturn. Global financial markets are continuing to experience disruptions,
including severely diminished liquidity and credit availability, modest consumer confidence, slow economic growth, stagnant unemployment rates, and
uncertainty about economic stability. Given these uncertainties, there is no assurance that there will not be deterioration in the global economy, the global
financial markets and consumer confidence. If economic conditions deteriorate our business and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.
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Warranty claims, product liability claims and product recalls could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition.
Our business inherently exposes us to potential warranty and product liability claims, in the event that our products fail to perform as expected or such
failure of our products results, or is alleged to result, in bodily injury or property damage (or both). Such claims may arise despite our quality controls, proper
testing and instruction for use of our products, either due to a defect during manufacturing or due to the individual’s improper use of the product. In addition, if
any of our designed products are, or are alleged, to be defective, then we may be required to participate in a recall of them.
Although we have product liability insurance for our products, this may be inadequate to cover all potential product liability claims. In addition, while we
often seek to limit our product liability in our contracts, such limits may not be enforceable or may be subject to exceptions. Any product recall or lawsuit seeking
significant monetary damages either in excess of our coverage, or outside of our coverage, may have a material adverse effect on our business and financial
condition. We may not be able to secure additional product liability insurance coverage on acceptable terms or at reasonable costs when needed. If we were to
experience a large insured loss, it might exceed our coverage limits, or our insurance carriers could decline to further cover us or raise our insurance rates to
unacceptable levels, any of which could impair our financial position and results of operations. A successful product liability claim against us could require us to
pay a substantial monetary award. We cannot be assured that such claims will not be made in the future.
We may need to defend ourselves against patent or trademark infringement claims, which may be time-consuming and would cause us to
incur substantial costs.
Companies, organizations or individuals, including our competitors, may hold or obtain patents, trademarks or other proprietary rights that would prevent,
limit or interfere with our ability to make, use, develop or sell our battery products and BMS, which could make it more difficult for us to operate our business.
Companies holding patents or other intellectual property rights relating to battery packs or electronic power management systems may bring suits alleging
infringement of such rights or otherwise asserting their rights and seeking licenses. In addition, if we are determined to have infringed upon a third party’s
intellectual property rights, we may be required to do one or more of the following:
— cease selling, incorporating or using products that incorporate the challenged intellectual property;
— obtain a license from the holder of the infringed intellectual property right, which license may not be available on reasonable terms or at all; or
— re-design our battery management systems.
In the event of a successful claim of infringement against us and our failure or inability to obtain a license to the infringed technology, our business,
prospects, operating results and financial condition could be materially adversely affected. In addition, any litigation or claims, whether or not valid, could result in
substantial costs and diversion of resources and management attention.
We may license patents and other intellectual property from third parties, and we may face claims that our use of this in-licensed technology infringes the
rights of others. In that case, we may seek indemnification from our licensors under our license contracts with them. However, our rights to indemnification may
be unavailable or insufficient to cover our costs and losses, depending on our use of the technology, whether we choose to retain control over conduct of the
litigation, and other factors.
Our business will be adversely affected if we are unable to protect our intellectual property rights from unauthorized use or infringement by
third parties.
Any failure to protect our proprietary rights adequately could result in our competitors offering similar products, potentially resulting in the loss of some of
our competitive advantage and a decrease in our revenue, which would adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition and operating results. Our
success depends, at least in part, on our ability to protect our core technology and intellectual property. To accomplish this, we rely on a combination of patents,
patent applications, trade secrets, including know-how, employee and third party nondisclosure agreements, copyright laws, trademarks, intellectual property
licenses and other contractual rights to establish and protect our proprietary rights in our technology.
The protection provided by the patent laws is and will be important to our future opportunities. However, such patents and agreements and various other
measures we take to protect our intellectual property from use by others may not be effective for various reasons, including the following:
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— the patents we have been granted may be challenged, invalidated or circumvented because of the pre-existence of similar patented or unpatented
intellectual property rights or for other reasons;
— The costs associated with enforcing patents, confidentiality and invention agreements or other intellectual property rights may make aggressive
enforcement impracticable; and
— current and future competitors may independently develop similar technology and/or duplicate our systems in a way that circumvents our patents.
Our patent applications may not result in issued patents, which may have a material adverse effect on our ability to prevent others from
commercially exploiting products similar to ours.
Our patent applications may not result in issued patents, which may have a material adverse effect on our ability to prevent others from commercially
exploiting products similar to ours.
We cannot be certain that we are the first creator of inventions covered by pending patent applications or the first to file patent applications on these
inventions, nor can we be certain that our pending patent applications will result in issued patents or that any of our issued patents will afford protection against a
competitor. In addition, patent applications that we intend to file in foreign countries are subject to laws, rules and procedures that differ from those of the United
States, and thus we cannot be certain that foreign patent applications related to issue United States patents will be issued. Furthermore, if these patent
applications issue, some foreign countries provide significantly less effective patent enforcement than in the United States.
The status of patents involves complex legal and factual questions and the breadth of claims allowed is uncertain. As a result, we cannot be certain that
the patent applications that we file will result in patents being issued, or that our patents and any patents that may be issued to us in the near future will afford
protection against competitors with similar technology. In addition, patents issued to us may be infringed upon or designed around by others and others may
obtain patents that we need to license or design around, either of which would increase costs and may adversely affect our business, prospects, financial
condition and operating results.
We rely on trade secret protections through confidentiality agreements with our employees, customers and other parties; the breach of such
agreements could adversely affect our business and results of operations.
We rely on trade secrets, which we seek to protect, in part, through confidentiality and non-disclosure agreements with our employees, customers and
other parties. There can be no assurance that these agreements will not be breached, that we would have adequate remedies for any such breach or that our
trade secrets will not otherwise become known to or independently developed by competitors. To the extent that consultants, key employees or other third
parties apply technological information independently developed by them or by others to our proposed projects, disputes may arise as to the proprietary rights to
such information that may not be resolved in our favor. We may be involved from time to time in litigation to determine the enforceability, scope and validity of
our proprietary rights. Any such litigation could result in substantial cost and diversion of effort by our management and technical personnel.
Our production capacity might not be able to meet with growing market demand or changing market conditions.
We cannot give assurance that our production capacity will be able to meet our obligations and the growing market demand for our products in the
future. Furthermore, we may not be able to expand our production capacity in response to the changing market conditions. If we fail to meet demand from our
customers, we may lose our market share.
Our business depends substantially on the continuing efforts of our executive officers, and our business may be severely disrupted if we
lose their services.
We believe that our success is largely dependent upon the continued service of the members of our management team, who are critical to establishing
our corporate strategies and focus, and ensuring our continued growth. Our continued success will depend on our ability to attract and retain a qualified and
competent management team in order to manage our existing operations and support our expansion plans. Although we are not aware of any change, if any of
our executive officers are unable or unwilling to continue in their present positions, we may not be able to replace them readily, if at all. Therefore, our business
may be severely disrupted, and we may incur additional expenses to recruit and retain new officers. In addition, if any of our executives joins a competitor or
forms a competing company, we may lose some of our customers.
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Workforce reductions may impair our ability to comply with legal and regulatory requirements as a Public Company.
There can be no assurance that our management team will be able to implement and affect programs and policies in an effective and timely manner that
adequately respond to increased legal, regulatory compliance and reporting requirements imposed by such laws and regulations. Our failure to comply with such
laws and regulations could lead to the imposition of fines and penalties and further result in the deterioration of our business.
Compliance with changing regulations concerning corporate governance and public disclosure may result in additional expenses.
There have been changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure, including the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 (“Sarbanes-Oxley”), new regulations promulgated by the SEC and rules promulgated by the national securities exchanges. These new or changed laws,
regulations and standards are subject to varying interpretations in many cases due to their lack of specificity, and, as a result, their application in practice may
evolve over time as new guidance is provided by regulatory and governing bodies, which could result in continuing uncertainty regarding compliance matters and
higher costs necessitated by ongoing revisions to disclosure and governance practices. As a result, our efforts to comply with evolving laws, regulations and
standards are likely to continue to result in increased general and administrative expenses and a diversion of management time and attention from revenuegenerating activities to compliance activities. Members of our Board of Directors and our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer could face an
increased risk of personal liability in connection with the performance of their duties. As a result, we may have difficulty attracting and retaining qualified directors
and executive officers, which could harm our business. If the actions we take in our efforts to comply with new or changed laws, regulations and standards differ
from the actions intended by regulatory or governing bodies, we could be subject to liability under applicable laws or our reputation may be harmed.
In addition, Sarbanes-Oxley specifically requires, among other things, that we maintain effective internal controls for financial reporting and disclosure of
controls and procedures. In particular, we must perform system and process evaluation and testing of our internal controls over financial reporting to allow
management to report on the effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting, as required by Section 404 of Sarbanes-Oxley. Our testing, or the
subsequent testing by our independent registered public accounting firm, when required, may reveal deficiencies in our internal controls over financial reporting
that are deemed to be material weaknesses. Our compliance with Section 404 will require that we incur substantial accounting expense and expend significant
management efforts. We currently do not have an internal audit group, and we will need to hire additional accounting and financial staff with appropriate public
company experience and technical accounting knowledge. Moreover, if we are not able to comply with the requirements of Section 404 in a timely manner, or if
we or our independent registered public accounting firm identifies deficiencies in our internal controls over financial reporting that are deemed to be material
weaknesses, the market price of our stock could decline, and we could be subject to sanctions or investigations by the SEC or other regulatory authorities, which
would require additional financial and management resources.
We may be required to obtain the approval of various government agencies to market our products.
Our products are subject to product safety regulations by Federal, state, and local organizations. Accordingly, we may be required, or may voluntarily
determine to, obtain approval of our products from one or more of the organizations engaged in regulating product safety. These approvals could require
significant time and resources from our technical staff, and, if redesign were necessary, could result in a delay in the introduction of our products in various
markets and applications. There can be no assurance that we will obtain any or all of the approvals that may be required to market our products.
We may face significant costs relating to environmental regulations.
Federal, state, and local regulations impose significant environmental requirements on the manufacture, storage, transportation, and disposal of various
components of advanced energy storage systems. Although we believe that our operations are in material compliance with current applicable environmental
regulations, there can be no assurance that changes in such laws and regulations will not impose costly compliance requirements on us or otherwise subject us
to future liabilities. Moreover, Federal, state, and local governments may enact additional regulations relating to the manufacture, storage, transportation, and
disposal of components of advanced energy storage systems. Compliance with such additional regulations could require us to devote significant time and
resources and could adversely affect demand for our products. There can be no assurance that additional or modified regulations relating to the manufacture,
storage, transportation, and disposal of components of advanced energy systems will not be imposed.
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We may face significant costs relating to Occupational Safety and Health Regulations
The California Division of Occupational Safety and Health (“Cal/OSHA”) and other regulatory agencies have jurisdiction over the operations of our Vista,
California facility. Because of the risks generally associated with the assembly of advanced energy storage systems, we expect rigorous enforcement of
applicable health and safety regulations. Frequent audits by or changes in the regulations issued by Cal/OSHA, or other regulatory agencies with jurisdiction
over our operations, may cause unforeseen delays and require significant time and resources from our technical staff.
Risks Related to Our Common Stock and Market
The market price of our common stock can become volatile, leading to the possibility of its value being depressed at a time when you may
want to sell your holdings.
The market price of our common stock can become volatile. Numerous factors, many of which are beyond our control, may cause the market price of our
common stock to fluctuate significantly. These factors include:
— our earnings releases, actual or anticipated changes in our earnings, fluctuations in our operating results or our failure to meet the expectations of
financial market analysts and investors;
— changes in financial estimates by us or by any securities analysts who might cover our stock;
— speculation about our business in the press or the investment community;
— significant developments relating to our relationships with our customers or suppliers;
— stock market price and volume fluctuations of other publicly traded companies and, in particular, those that are in our industry;
— limited “public float” in the hands of a small number of persons whose sales or lack of sales could result in positive or negative pricing pressure on the
market price for our common stock;
— customer demand for our products;
— investor perceptions of our industry in general and our Company in particular;
— general economic conditions and trends;
— announcements by us or our competitors of new products, significant acquisitions, strategic partnerships or divestitures;
— changes in accounting standards, policies, guidance, interpretation or principles;
— loss of external funding sources;
— sales of our common stock, including sales by our directors, officers or significant stockholders; and
— additions or departures of key personnel.
The ownership of our stock is highly concentrated in our management.
As of September 6, 2013, our present directors and executive officers, and their respective affiliates beneficially owned approximately 81% of our
outstanding common stock, including underlying options that were exercisable or which would become exercisable within 60 days. As a result of their ownership,
our directors and executive officers and their respective affiliates collectively are able to significantly influence all matters requiring stockholder approval,
including the election of directors and approval of significant corporate transactions. This concentration of ownership may also have the effect of delaying or
preventing a change in control.
We do not intend to pay dividends on shares of our common stock for the foreseeable future.
We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on shares of our common stock. We intend to retain any future earnings to fund the operation and
expansion of our business and, therefore, we do not anticipate paying cash dividends on shares of our common stock in the foreseeable future.
Our common stock is illiquid and this low trading volume may adversely affect the price of our common stock.
Our common stock currently is quoted on the OTCQB under the symbol “FLUX.” However, with very little trading history, a trading market that does not
represent an “established trading market,” a limited current public float, volatility in the bid and asked prices and the fact that our common stock is very thinly
traded, you could lose all or a substantial portion of your funds if you make an investment in us. In addition, potential dilutive effects of future sales of shares of
common stock by us and our shareholders, and subsequent sale of common stock by the holders of warrants and options, could have an adverse effect on the
price of our securities, which could hinder our ability to raise additional capital to fully implement our business, operating and development plans.
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Penny stock regulations affect our stock price, which may make it more difficult for investors to sell their stock.
Broker-dealer practices in connection with transactions in “penny stocks” are regulated by certain penny stock rules adopted by the SEC. Penny stocks
generally are equity securities with a price per share of less than $5.00 (other than securities registered on certain national securities exchanges or quoted on
the NASDAQ Stock Market, provided that current price and volume information with respect to transactions in such securities is provided by the exchange or
system). The penny stock rules require a broker-dealer, prior to a transaction in a penny stock not otherwise exempt from the rules, to deliver a standardized risk
disclosure document that provides information about penny stocks and the risks in the penny stock market. The broker-dealer must also provide the customer
with current bid and offer quotations for the penny stock, the compensation of the broker-dealer and its salesperson in the transaction, and monthly account
statements showing the market value of each penny stock held in the customer’s account. In addition, the penny stock rules generally require that prior to a
transaction in a penny stock the broker-dealer make a special written determination that the penny stock is a suitable investment for the purchaser and receive
the purchaser’s written agreement to the transaction. These disclosure requirements may have the effect of reducing the level of trading activity in the secondary
market for a stock that becomes subject to the penny stock rules. Our securities are subject to the penny stock rules, and investors may find it more difficult to
sell their securities.
Preferred Stock may be issued under our Articles of Incorporation.
Our Articles of Incorporation authorize the issuance of up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock. The preferred stock may be issued in one or more
series, the terms of which may be determined at the time of issuance. These terms may include voting rights including the right to vote as a series on particular
matters, preferences as to dividends and liquidation, conversion rights, redemption rights and sinking fund provisions. The issuance of any preferred stock could
diminish the rights of holders of our common stock, and therefore could reduce the value of such common stock.
We were a “shell company” and are subject to additional restrictions under Rule 144 on resales of our Restricted Securities.
The following is a quotation from subparagraph (i)(B)(2) of Rule 144: “Notwithstanding paragraph (i)(1), if the issuer of the securities previously had been
an issuer described in paragraph (i)(1)(i) but has ceased to be an issuer described in paragraph (i)(1)(i); is subject to the reporting requirements of section 13 or
15(d) of the Exchange Act; has filed all reports and other materials required to be filed by section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act, as applicable, during the
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the issue was required to file such reports and materials), other than Form 8-K reports (§249.308 of this
chapter); and has filed current “Form 10 information” with the Commission reflecting its status as an entity that is no longer an issuer described in paragraph (i)
(1)(i), then those securities may be sold subject to the requirements of this section after one year has elapsed from the date that the issuer filed “Form 10
information” with the Commission.” As a “shell company” immediately prior to the Reverse Acquisition, we are subject to additional restrictions under Rule 144
which provides that no sales of our restricted securities could be sold until we have complied with subparagraph (i)(B)(2) of Rule 144.
ITEM 1B — UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2 — PROPERTIES
Effective July 1, 2013, the Company relocated its principal office and manufacturing to Vista, California. The Company entered into a month-to-month
sub-lease agreement for shared space with a related party. The agreement provides for monthly payments of approximately $4,950.
During the period from July 2011 to December 2011 the Company entered into a sublease agreement with a related party for approximately $6,600 per
month for a portion of Flux’s former facility space in Escondido, California. The Company recorded rent expense, net of sublease income during the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, of approximately $161,000 and approximately $106,000, respectively. On June 30, 2013, the sublease was terminated.
ITEM 3 — LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
From time to time, we may become involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of business. However, litigation
is subject to inherent uncertainties and an adverse result in these or other matters may arise from time to time that may harm our business. To the best
knowledge of management, there are no material legal proceedings pending against the Company.
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ITEM 4 — MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART II
ITEM 5 — MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES
Market Data
Our common stock started quotation on the OTCQB under the stock symbol “LNPI.” On June 14, 2012, our symbol was changed to “FLUX.” The
following table sets forth the range of the closing bid prices for our common stock for the period July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013, for each of the quarters
ended on the date set forth below. Such prices represent inter-dealer quotations, do not represent actual transactions, and do not include retail mark-ups, markdowns or commissions.
High
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2013
First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter
Fiscal year ended June 30, 2012
First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

Low

$
$
$
$

1.75
0.84
0.86
0.15

$
$
$
$

1.75
0.84
0.86
0.10

$
$
$
$

0.29
0.29
0.29
2.35

$
$
$
$

0.29
0.29
0.29
2.25

Shareholders
The approximate number of record holders of our common stocks as of September 6, 2013 was 1,341.
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
Common Stock and Warrants
(a)

Private Placement – June and July 2012

In June 2012, we initiated a private placement of our common stock and warrants to accredited investors to purchase up to 8 Units, at a price of
$500,000 per Unit, with each Unit consisting of 1,207,185 shares of our common stock and 241,437 five (5) year warrants to purchase one share of our common
stock at an exercise price of $0.41 per share. The Company issued 2,813,000 shares and 562,551 warrants raising approximately $1,126,000 in net proceeds
through June 30, 2012, and in July 2012 of fiscal 2013 the Company issued 1,690,063 shares and 338,013 warrants raising net proceeds of approximately
$672,000.
(b)

Private Placement– August and October 2012

In August 2012, the Company commenced a private placement of its common stock and warrants to accredited investors to purchase up to 8 Units for a
purchase price of $250,000 per Unit, with each Unit consisting of 603,594 shares of our common stock and 120,719 five (5) year warrants to purchase one share
of common stock at an exercise price of $0.41 per share. In connection with this private placement, on August 31, 2012, we sold an aggregate of 603,594
shares of common stock and issued 120,719 warrants raising net proceeds of approximately $231,000.
In October 2012, the Company continued the private placement of its common stock and warrants to an accredited investor to purchase up to 8 Units for
a purchase price of $250,000 per Unit, with each Unit consisting of 603,592 shares of our common stock and 120,718 five (5) year warrants to purchase one
share of common stock at an exercise price of $0.41 per share. In connection with this private placement, on October 30, 2012, we sold an aggregate of
241,436 shares of common stock and issued 48,287 warrants raising net proceeds of approximately $77,000. The October private placement closed out the
round of financing which began in June 2012.
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The common stock purchased in the private placements and the common stock issuable upon exercise of warrants have piggyback registration rights.
The securities offered and sold in the private placement have not been registered under the Securities Act and may not be offered or sold in the United States
absent registration or an applicable exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act.
(c) Option Exercises
During the twelve months ended June 30, 2013, in connection with the exercise of options by our former employees, we issued 549,552 shares of our
common stock for net proceeds of $22,000. The shares of common stock issued have not been registered under the Securities Act and have been issued
pursuant to exemption available under Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act.
Purchases of Equity Securities
We have never repurchased any of our equity securities.
Dividends
The Company did not declare or pay dividends on its common stock during fiscal years 2013 and 2012 and we presently do not expect to declare or pay
such dividends in the foreseeable future and expect to reinvest all undistributed earnings to expand our operations, which the management believes would be of
the most benefit to our shareholders. The declaration of dividends, if any, will be subject to the discretion of our Board of Directors, which may consider such
factors as our results of operations, financial condition, capital needs and acquisition strategy, among others.
Equity Compensation Plan Information
Flux Power adopted the 2010 Stock Option Plan (“Option Plan”) which reserved 2,000,000 shares of common stock for issuance upon exercise of
options. As of June 30, 2013, the number of shares of common stock outstanding under the Option Plan was 2,527,388. Subsequent to the Company’s Reverse
Acquisition on June 14, 2012, options under the Option Plan were no longer available for issuance. Alternatively, non-qualified option grants can be approved by
the Company’s Board of Directors. Further issuance by the Board of Director’s will require submission of a registration statement with the SEC to establish a new
option plan.
The following table contains information relating to the Option Plan as of June 30, 2013, as assumed and adjusted by us pursuant to the Reverse
Acquisition:

Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders
Total

Number of Securities
to be Issued Upon
Exercise of
Outstanding Options,
and Warrants
2,527,388
2,527,388

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price of
Outstanding Options,
and Warrants
$
0.15
$

0.15

Number of Securities
Remaining Available
for Future Issuance
under Equity
Compensation Plans
(excluding securities
reflected in column A)
0
0

DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES
Common Stock
We are authorized to issue up to 145,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share. Each outstanding share of common stock entitles
the holder thereof to one vote per share on all matters. Our bylaws provide that any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors may be filled by the affirmative
vote of a majority of the remaining directors though less than a quorum of the Board of Directors.
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The holders of shares of our common stock are entitled to dividends out of funds legally available when and as declared by our Board of Directors. Our
Board of Directors has never declared a dividend and does not anticipate declaring a dividend in the foreseeable future. Should we decide in the future to pay
dividends, as a holding company, our ability to do so and meet other obligations depends upon the receipt of dividends or other payments from our operating
subsidiary and other holdings and investments. In the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, holders of our common stock are entitled to receive,
ratably, the net assets available to stockholders after payment of all creditors.
To the extent that additional shares of our common stock are issued, the relative interests of existing stockholders will be diluted.
Preferred Stock
We may issue up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value of $0.001 in one or more classes or series within a class pursuant to our Articles of
Incorporation. There are currently no shares of preferred stock issued and outstanding.
ITEM 6 — SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
As a Smaller Reporting Company as defined by Rule12b-2 of the Exchange Act and in item 10(f)(1) of Regulation S-K, we are electing scaled disclosure
reporting obligations and therefore are not required to provide the information requested by this Item.
ITEM 7 — MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following discussion and analysis provides information which management believes is relevant to an assessment and understanding of the
Company’s results of operations and financial condition. The discussion should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements and Notes thereto contained
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Some of the statements contained in the following discussion of the Company’s financial condition and results of operations refer to future expectations
or include other “forward-looking” information. Those statements are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause the
actual results to differ materially from those contemplated by these statements. The forward-looking information is based on various factors and was derived
from numerous assumptions. See “Cautionary Statement for Purposes of the Safe Harbor Provision of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995,”
included in this Report on Form 10-K for a discussion of factors to be considered when evaluating forward-looking information detailed below. These factors
could cause our actual results to differ materially from the forward looking statements.
Overview
We design, develop and sell rechargeable advanced energy storage systems. We have developed an innovative high power battery cell management
system (“BMS”) and have structured our business around this core technology. Our proprietary BMS provides three critical functions to our battery systems:
·

Cell Balancing: This is performed by continuously adjusting the capacity of each cell in a storage system according to temperature, voltage, and
internal impedance metrics. This management assures longevity of the overall system.

·

Monitoring: This is performed through temperature probes, a physical connection to individual cells for voltage and calculations from basic metrics to
determine remaining capacity and internal impedance. This monitoring assures accurate measurements to best manage the system and assure
longevity.

·

Error reporting: This is performed by analyzing data from monitoring each individual cell and making decision on whether the individual cell or the
system is operating out of normal specifications. This error reporting is crucial to system management as it ensures ancillary devices are not
damaging your storage system and will give the operator an opportunity to take corrective action to maintain long overall system life.

Using our proprietary battery management technology, we are able to offer completely integrated energy storage solutions or custom modular
standalone systems to our clients. In addition, we have also developed a suite of complementary technologies and products that accompany and enhance the
abilities of our BMS to meet the needs of the growing advanced energy storage market.
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We sold our first validated product in the second quarter of 2010 and have since delivered over 15 mega watt-hours of Advanced Energy Storage to
clients such as NACCO Materials Handling Group, Inc. (NACCO), GreenTech Automotive, Inc. (GTA), Crown Equipment Corporation, Damascus Corporation,
Columbia Parcar Corporation, Wheego Electric Cars Inc., (“Wheego”), Epic Electric Vehicles, and Texas Association of Local Health Officials (TALHO).
We are currently primarily focusing on the lift equipment with dealers/distributors, and secondarily, with the non-OEM micro-grid market. We anticipate
that these markets will be the strongest for aggressive revenue growth over the coming year. A Prototype Agreement with NACCO confirmed that our advanced
energy storage systems can address a broad range of lift equipment. However, the OEM market proved to be elusive and time consuming. In addition, working
exclusively with one manufacturer would significantly limit our market opportunity. As such, we have shifted our focus from an OEM market to a non-OEM
markets which pose fewer barriers to entry. Currently, we are working with various lift equipment OEM’s, their dealers and battery distributors to bring our
advanced energy storage systems to the lift equipment market which provides a more direct market path without the delays and issues that accompany an
OEM’s world-wide deployment of new energy solutions for lift truck equipment.
The micro-grid market includes working with companies like Powerful Battery Systems Inc. to provide mobile and man-portable advanced energy
storage to act as gas generator replacements and convenient mobile power for lighting, disaster preparedness, communications and water filtration. We have
demonstration units currently being evaluated by the U.S. military providing us with their assessment and feedback. Additionally, we have placed solar, grid-tie
energy storage in an office setting facility to evaluate the results of the output to meet operational needs.
Recent Developments and Events
Financing
During our fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, we generated aggregate net proceeds of approximately $1,000,000 from the sales of common stock and
warrants and the exercise of stock options, and approximately $1,618,000 from borrowings under existing debt agreements. Subsequent to June 30, 2013 we
have borrowed additional amounts totaling approximately $403,000 under existing debt agreements. As part of the Company’s financing plan established in
fiscal 2012, we engaged a financial advisor to assist in securing additional equity capital of $2.5 million earlier this year. However, that effort did not yet produce
funding and the Company is pursuing another financial advisor to assist it in raising the necessary required capital. As discussed further under Liquidity and
Capital Resources, we do not currently believe that our existing cash resources are sufficient to meet its anticipated needs during the next twelve months, and
that additional financing is required by October 31, 2013 to support current operations.
Proposed Acquisition
In June 2013, the Company entered into a non-binding letter of intent (“LOI”) to acquire KleenSpeed Technologies (“KleenSpeed”). KleenSpeed
develops technology for distributed energy markets, including grid storage. The LOI proposes that upon the successful closing of the acquisition, KleenSpeed will
become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Flux Power and Flux Power’s Board of Directors will be expanded from three members to five members with KleenSpeed’s
current CEO, Timothy Collins, joining the Board of Flux Power and assuming the role of Executive Chairman of Flux Power. While the specific terms of the
acquisition will be announced upon the execution of a definitive agreement, the acquisition is expected to be completed within the next twelve months. The LOI
contemplates that 11 million shares of Flux Power common stock would be issued to KleenSpeed shareholders upon closing as consideration for the purchase of
KleenSpeed. In addition, the LOI contemplates that the consummation of the acquisition will be conditioned upon other customary closing conditions and the
successful completion of a private placement of Flux Power’s common stock (the “Shares”) for a minimum of $800,000 and a maximum of $2,500,000, with the
proceeds to be used primarily as working capital and future product development. The Shares will not be registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the “Securities Act”) or applicable state securities laws and may not be offered or sold in the United States absent registration or an applicable
exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act and applicable state laws. The Shares will be offered only to “accredited investors” in reliance
on Regulation D promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) under the Securities Act. As of September 9, 2013 there have been no
changes to the original LOI.
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Advisory Agreements
Baytree Capital - Related Party. On June 14, 2012, the Company entered into an Advisory Agreement (“Advisory Agreement”) with Baytree Capital, a
significant shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which Baytree Capital agreed to provide business and advisory services for 24 months in exchange for
100,000 restricted shares of our newly issued common stock at the commencement of each six (6) month period in return for its services, and a warrant to
purchase 1,837,777 restricted shares of our common stock for a period of five (5) years at an exercise price of $0.41 per share (“Advisory Agreement Warrants”).
In connection with this agreement, the estimated fair value of the warrants issued in the approximate amount of $3,258,000 was recorded as prepaid advisory
fees, which is expected to be amortized on a pro-rata basis over the term of the agreement. During the twelve months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, we
recorded expense of approximately $1,629,000 and $68,000 respectively based on the amortization of the prepaid advisory fees, as of June 30, 2013 the total
remaining balance of the prepaid advisory fees was approximately $1,561,000. Baytree Capital agreed to forego issuance of common stock to them for the first
six-month period beginning June 14, 2012.
In accordance with the Advisory Agreement, on December 14, 2012 which was the beginning of the second six-month period, a liability was recorded
based on that day’s stock price for the anticipated issuance of 100,000 shares of common stock. On February 25, 2013 we issued Baytree Capital 100,000
restricted shares of our newly issued common stock as previously accrued, for the second six-month period beginning June 14, 2012. These shares were valued
at $0.90 per share, based on the price per share of the Company’s common stock on February 25, 2013, for the total of $90,000 due to Baytree Capital. The
Company recorded $90,000 of prepaid advisory fees that were amortized through June 14, 2013, when the next 100,000 common shares were due to be issued
to Baytree Capital. The prepaid advisory fees were adjusted for amortization already recognized from the original issuance due date of December 14, 2012.
In accordance with the Advisory Agreement, on June 14, 2013 which was the beginning of the third six-month period, a liability was recorded based on
that day’s stock price for the anticipated issuance of 100,000 shares of common stock. These shares were valued at $0.60 per share, based on the price per
share of the Company’s common stock on June 14, 2013, for the total of $60,000, which is recorded on the Company’s balance sheet and is included in accrued
expenses. As of June 30, 2013, $55,000 remains in prepaid expense and $5,000 has been recognized as consulting expense. On July 9, 2013 we issued
Baytree Capital 100,000 restricted shares of our newly issued common stock as accrued for as of June 30, 2013, for the third six-month period.
Caro Capital, LLC. On April 4, 2013, the Company entered into an Advisory Agreement (“Agreement”) with Caro Capital, LLC (“Caro Capital”),
pursuant to which Caro Capital agreed to provide business and advisory services, management consulting, shareholder information and public relations for six (6)
months in exchange for 500,000 restricted shares of our newly issued common stock. Upon execution of the Agreement, Caro Capital was issued 100,000
shares of restricted stock per the contract terms, which were valued at $44,000 based on the closing price of our common stock on the issuance date. The
contract calls for subsequent issuance of 100,000 shares at 30-day increments to the first tranche. Per the terms of the Agreement, Caro Capital is entitled to the
second and third tranche issuance of 100,000 shares of restricted stock each. As of June 30, 2013 the Company has not issued these shares. The second
tranche shares were valued at $0.50 per share, based on the price per share of the Company’s common stock on May 4, 2013, when the second tranche shares
were due to be issued, for the total of $50,000 and the third tranche shares were valued at $0.32 per share, based on the price per share of the Company’s
common stock on June 4, 2013, when the third tranche shares were due to be issued, for the total of $32,000. The combined costs associated with the 200,000
shares to be issued of approximately $82,000 was recorded as consulting expense during the fourth quarter ended June 30, 2013 and is included in accrued
expenses as of June 30, 2013 on the Company’s balance sheet. On June 3, 2013, the Company terminated the Agreement with Caro Capital effective July 3,
2013.
The common shares issued for services are restricted and have not been registered under the Securities Act and may not be offered or sold in the
United States absent registration or an applicable exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
The Company’s discussion and analysis of its financial condition and results of operations are based upon the Company’s Financial Statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). The preparation of these financial
statements requires the Company to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses, and the
related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates its estimates based on its historical experience and on
various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions.
The Company believes the following critical accounting policies and estimates affect the preparation of our financial statements:
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Inventory Valuation
Inventories consist primarily of batteries, battery management systems and the related subcomponents, and are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, firstout) or market. Prepaid inventory represents deposits made by us for inventory purchases. We evaluate inventories to determine if write-downs are necessary
due to obsolescence or if the inventory levels are in excess of anticipated demand at market value based on consideration of historical sales and product
development plans. The Company recorded an adjustment related to obsolete inventory in the amount of approximately $77,000 and $26,000 during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, price is fixed or determinable, and
collectability of the selling price is reasonably assured. Delivery occurs when risk of loss is passed to the customer, as specified by the terms of the applicable
customer agreements. When a right of return exists, contractually or implied, the Company recognizes revenue on the sell-through method. Under this method,
revenue is not recognized upon delivery of the inventory components. Instead, the Company records deferred revenue upon delivery and recognize revenue
when the inventory components are sold through to the end user.

During the twelve months ended June 30, 2013, the Company recognized approximately $480,000 of previously deferred revenue (as the right of return
was waived) and the related product cost of approximately $429,000.
Classification of Equity Instruments
The Company follows Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic No. 815, Derivatives and
Hedging to classify and value warrant liabilities. Warrants classified as derivative liabilities are recorded at their fair values at the issuance date and are revalued
at each subsequent reporting date, using a Monte Carlo simulation (“MCS”). A MCS model uses a simulation technique to generate multiple random price paths
for the stock price to simulate many possible future outcomes, which are then discounted at the risk-free rate. These simulated paths are then averaged to
determine the fair value of the warrants (see Note 8, to the financial statements).
Our outstanding warrants offer the holders of such warrants protection against dilution whereby the exercise price of the warrants can be adjusted if the
Company completes a subsequent round of financing at less than $1 per share. This provision requires the warrants described below be accounted for as
derivative liabilities.
Share-based Compensation
We account for share-based compensation in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 718, “ Compensation—Stock
Compensation” (“ASC 718”) and ASC 505-50, Equity-Based Payments to Non-Employees (“ASC 505-50”) requiring the measurement and recognition of
compensation expense for all share-based payment awards based on estimated grant or measurement date fair values. ASC 718 ASC 505-50 require the use of
subjective assumptions, including expected stock price volatility, forfeitures and the estimated term of each award. If actual results differ significantly from our
estimates, stock-based compensation expense and our results of operations could be materially impacted.
Segment and Related Information
We operate as a single reportable segment.
Comparison of Results of Operations
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012
Net Income (Loss)
During fiscal 2013 the Company reported net income of approximately $351,000 as compared to a net loss of approximately $2,385,000 in fiscal 2012.
Revenues
We currently sell products direct or through one of several retail distributors in North America. Our direct customers are mostly large companies while
our distributors primarily distribute to smaller retail customers. Excluding the impact of the change in fair value of warrant derivative liability of $5,731,000 the
Company would have reported a net loss of $5,380,000.
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Revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, decreased by approximately $5,158,000, or 87%, compared to the year ended June 30, 2012. This
large decrease in sales was primarily attributable to major customers ultimately not meeting their production expectations.
Experience during the recent six months ending June 30, 2013 has shown that the Company may be able to achieve higher longer-term revenue by
focusing on a smaller number of products and selling to customers that do not require extensive and lengthy product development and negotiation periods. An
example has been the recent decision by NACCO to pursue a much larger supplier that can provide extensive resources to support lengthy prove-out
requirements for one of their product areas. As a response, the Company has narrowed its focus to product segments including “micro-grid energy storage” and
“lift equipment”. The Company feels that it is well positioned to address these markets, which include applications such as industrial electric vehicles like electric
forklifts, floor scrubbers, back-up power, grid-tie power, solar storage, electric service vehicles, pallet drivers, and mobile cooling units. However, the Company
cannot guarantee that it will be successful in transitioning companies in these segments from legacy lead-acid technologies to our advanced energy storage
solutions.
Cost of Revenues
Cost of revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, decreased approximately $4,013,000 or 84% compared to the fiscal year ended June 30,
2012. This large decrease in cost of revenues was attributable to decrease in related sales costs as discussed above.
Gross Profit
Gross profit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, decreased by approximately $1,145,000 or 99%, compared to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.
Gross profit as a percentage of revenue for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, decreased to 2% compared to 20% in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.
Gross profit margins during fiscal 2013 reflect fixed costs that did not decline as revenue declined.
Selling, and General and Administrative Expenses
Selling, and general and administrative expenses for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 were approximately $2,569,000 and $2,368,000,
respectively. Such expenses consist primarily of salaries and personnel related expenses, stock-based compensation expense, public company costs, consulting
costs, professional fees and other expenses. The increase of approximately $201,000 or 8% was primarily due to public company expenses.
Amortization of Prepaid Advisory Fees
Amortization of prepaid advisory fees for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 was approximately $1,719,000. There were no prepaid advisory fees in
fiscal 2012. The prepaid advisory fees are related to the fair value of the warrants issued under an advisory agreement with Baytree Capital dated June 14,
2012, and to value of the shares of the Company’s common stock issued pursuant to the same agreement where Baytree Capital agreed to provide business
and advisory services to the Company.
Research and Development Expense
Research and development expenses for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 were approximately $992,000 and $590,000, respectively.
Such expenses consist primarily of materials, supplies, salaries and personnel related expenses, stock-based compensation expense, consulting costs and other
expenses. The increase of approximately $402,000 or 68% was primarily due to an increase in personnel costs and benefits, and an increase in material and
supplies consumption.
Change in Fair Value of Warrant Derivative Liability
We follow FASB ASC Topic No . 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures ("ASC 820") in connection with financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value on a recurring basis subsequent to initial re cognition. Changes in the fair value as of June 30 , 2013 and 2012 were appro ximately $5,731,000 and
an increase to expense of $590,000, respectively (see Note 10, to the financial statements). The fair value of new warrant derivative liabilities and the change in
the estimated fair value of derivative liabilities that we recorded during the t welve months ended June 30 , 2013, related to warrants issued in connection with
our private placement transactions and Baytree Advisory Agreement (see Note 6, to the financial statements).
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Overview
As of June 30, 2013, we had a cash balance of approximately $20,000, negative working capital of approximately $408,000 and an accumulated deficit
of approximately $3,977,000.
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Cash Flows
Operating Activities
Our operating activities resulted in net cash used in operations of approximately $3,371,000, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 compared to net
cash used in operations of approximately $1,494,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.
The net cash used in operating activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 reflects our use of proceeds to build the business including increasing
expenditures such as additional marketing and research and development. The net income of approximately $351,000 was offset by non-cash items including;
depreciation of approximately $44,000, amortization of prepaid advisory fees of approximately $1,719,000, stock-based compensation of approximately $94,000,
offset by changes in the fair value of warrants issued of approximately $5,731,000 offset by approximately $77,000 related to the valuation adjustment to
inventory. Changes in operating assets and liabilities included a decrease in accounts receivable of approximately $41,000, an increase in accounts payable of
approximately $77,000, a decrease in inventories of approximately $653,000 (net of $77,000 valuation adjustment to inventory). Other changes include a
decrease in accrued expenses of approximately $112,000 primarily related to payroll and related costs an increase in accrued interest of approximately
$116,000, an increase in customer deposits of approximately $3,000, a decrease in customer deposits from related party of approximately $62,000, a decrease
in deferred revenue of approximately $480,000 and a decrease in other current assets of approximately $7,000.
The increase in net cash used in operating activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 reflects our use of proceeds to build the business including
increasing expenditures such as, additional marketing and research and development and the costs of our Reverse Acquisition (see Note 1, to the financial
statements). The net loss of approximately $2,385,000 offset by non - cash items; including depreciation of approximately $30,000, amortization of prepaid
consulting fees of approximately $68,000, changes in the fair value of warrants issued of approximately $526,000, stock-based compensation of approximately
$45,000, offset by approximately $26,000 related to the write down for obsolescence of inventory. Changes in operating assets and liabilities included an
increase in accounts receivable of approximately $13,000, an increase in accounts payable of approximately $284,000, a decrease in inventories of
approximately $1,263,000, (net of $26,000 write-down for obsolete inventory), additional decrease of prepaid inventories $56,000, an increase in accrued
expenses of approximately $316,000 primarily related to payroll and related costs a decrease in accrued interest of approximately $23,000, a decrease in
customer deposits of approximately $207,000, a decrease in customer deposits from related party of approximately $167,000, a decrease in deferred revenue of
approximately $1,322,000, and other minor factors.
Investing Activities
The net cash used in investing activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 consist primarily of purchases of equipment of approximately
$41,000 and $60,000, respectively.
Financing Activities
The net cash provided by financing activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was approximately $2,620,000 and $2,126,000,
respectively. The increase in financing activities is the result of additional requirements for capital.
Future Liquidity Needs
The Company has evaluated its expected cash requirements over the next twelve months, which include, but are not limited to, investments in additional
sales and marketing and product development resources, capital expenditures, and working capital requirements and has determined that our existing cash
resources are not sufficient to meet its anticipated needs during the next twelve months, and that additional financing is required by October 31, 2013 to support
current operations. Based on our current and planned levels of expenditure, we estimate that total financing proceeds of approximately $ 2.5 million will be
required to fund current and planned operations through June 30, 2014. In addition, we anticipate that further additional financing will be required to fund our
business plan subsequent to that date, until such time as revenues and related cash flows become sufficient to support our operating costs.
We intend to continue to seek capital through the private placement of securities. The timing of the Company’s need for additional capital will depend in
part on its future operating performance in terms of revenue growth and the level of operating expenses and capital expenditures incurred. As part of the
Company’s financing plan established last year, we engaged a financial advisor to assist in securing additional equity capital of $2.5 million earlier this year.
While this effort has not yet produced funding, the Company is seeking alternative advisory options and is pursuing other investment structures that are
anticipated to provide cash funding to the Company.
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Although management believes that the additional required funding will be obtained, there is no guarantee the Company will be able to obtain the
additional required funds in the future or that funds will be available on terms acceptable to the Company. If such funds are not available, management will be
required to curtail its investments in additional sales and marketing and product development resources, and capital expenditures, which may have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s future cash flows and results of operations, and its ability to continue operating as a going concern.
To the extent that we raise additional funds by issuing equity or debt securities, our shareholders may experience additional significant dilution and such
financing may involve restrictive covenants. To the extent that we raise additional funds through collaboration and licensing arrangements, it may be necessary
to relinquish some rights to our technologies or our product candidates, or grant licenses on terms that may not be favorable to us. Such actions may have a
material adverse effect on our business.
Additionally, recent global market and economic conditions have been unprecedented and challenging with tighter credit conditions and recession in
most major economies. As a result of these market conditions, the cost and availability of credit has been and may continue to be adversely affected by illiquid
credit markets and wider credit spreads. Concern about the stability of the markets generally and the strength of counterparties specifically has led many lenders
and institutional investors to reduce, and in some cases, cease to provide credit to businesses and consumers. These factors have led to a decrease in spending
by businesses and consumers alike, and a corresponding decrease in global infrastructure spending. Continued turbulence in the U.S. and international markets
and economies and prolonged declines in business and consumer spending may adversely affect our liquidity and financial condition, including our ability to
access the capital markets to meet liquidity needs.
Going Concern
As of June 30, 2013, we have incurred net losses from operations and have incurred an accumulated deficit of approximately $3,977,000 since our
inception. In addition, as of June 30, 2013 we had limited working capital and were in need of additional capital to fund operations. In their report on the annual
consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, our independent auditors included an explanatory paragraph in which they expressed
substantial doubt regarding the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon the continued
support of our stockholders to aid in financing our operations. Management’s plans are to continue to seek funding from our stockholders and other qualified
investors in order to pursue our business plan.
The issuance of additional equity securities by us could result in a significant dilution in the equity interests of our current stockholders. (See note 2, to
the financial statements)
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of June 30, 2013, we did not have any other relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partners, such as entities often referred to as
structured finance or special purpose entities, which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes. As such, we are not exposed to any financing, liquidity, market or credit risk that could arise if we had engaged in such
relationships.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
For the twelve months ended June 30, 2013, there were no accounting standards or interpretations issued that are expected to have a material impact
on our financial position, operations or cash flows.
ITEM 7A — QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
The Company is a smaller reporting company as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act and is not required to provide the information required under
this item.
ITEM 8 — FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The financial statements required by this item begin on page F-1 with the index to financial statements followed by the financial statements.
ITEM 9 — CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None
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ITEM 9A - CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as of the end
of the period covered by this report, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Act of 1934. Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable
assurance that the information required to be included in our Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) reports is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms, relating to the Company, including our consolidated subsidiaries, and was made known to
them by others within those entities, particularly during the period when this report was being prepared. Based on the management's assessment and review of
our financial statements and results for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, we have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective for
purposes stated above.
(a)

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. The Company’s
internal control over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of the Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the Company’s financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective
can provide only reasonable assurances with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. Additionally, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Our management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. As of June 30, 2013, management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on the criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting established in “Internal Control — Integrated Framework,”
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Based on the assessment, management determined
that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2013 based on the COSO criteria.
This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include an attestation report of the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm regarding the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, as such report is not required due to the Company’s status as a smaller reporting
company.
Change in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
There have been no changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
ITEM 9B — OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART III
ITEM 10 — DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Directors, Executive Officers and Significant Employees
Identification of Directors, Executive Officers and Significant Employees
The following table and text set forth the names and ages of our current directors, executive officers and significant employees as of the date of this
report. Our Board of Directors is comprised of only one class. All of the directors will serve until the next annual meeting of stockholders or until their successors
are elected and qualified, or until their earlier death, retirement, resignation or removal. There are no family relationships among any of the directors and
executive officers. Our Board of Director members are not paid for their service.
Name
Ronald F. Dutt
Christopher L. Anthony
Michael Johnson
James Gevarges

Age
66
37
63
48

Position
Chief Financial Officer, Interim Chief Executive Officer and President, and Interim Corporate
Secretary
Chairman and former Chief Executive Officer and President
Director
Director

There are no arrangements or understandings between our directors and executive officers and any other person pursuant to which any director or
officer was or is to be selected as a director or officer.
Business Experience
Ronald F. Dutt. Director, Chief Financial Officer, interim Chief Executive Officer and President and interim Corporate Secretary. Mr. Dutt has
been our Chief Financial Officer since December 7, 2012 and our interim Chief Executive Officer since June 28, 2013. Mr. Dutt has served the Company’s
interim Corporate Secretary since June 28, 2013. Mr. Dutt will serve in the interim of Chief Executive Officer and Corporate Secretary until the Company and
Board replaces the position(s) with qualified individuals. Prior to Flux Power Mr. Dutt, provided Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer consulting
services during 2008 through 2012. In this capacity Mr. Dutt provided financial consulting, including strategic business modeling and managed operations. Prior
to 2008, Mr. Dutt served in several capacities as Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer for various public and private companies
including SOLA International, Directed Electronics, Fritz Companies DHL Americas, Famgro LLC, Aptera Motors, Inc., and Visa International. Currently , Mr. Dutt
has served as a board member of Rising International, a not-for-profit organization in Santa Cruz, California since 2011, and as a board advisor for Tyga-Box
Systems, a New York City based company since 2011. Rising International and Tyga-Box not affiliates of the Company. Mr. Dutt holds an MBA in Finance from
University of Washington and an undergraduate degree in Chemistry from the University of North Carolina. Additionally, Mr. Dutt served in the United States
Navy and received an honorable discharge as a Lieutenant.
Christopher L. Anthony, Chairman. Mr. Anthony has been our Chairman since June 14, 2012 and was the Company’s Chief Executive Officer from
June 14, 2012 through June 28, 2013. Prior to the Company’s Reverse Acquisition of Flux Power Holdings, Inc., in June 2012 Mr. Anthony served as Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of Flux Power since it was incorporated in 2009. Mr. Anthony is the founder and a majority owner of Epic Boats, LLC (“Epic Boats”) a
Delaware Corporation and has served as an R&D advisor since it was founded in 2002 and also served as Chief Executive Officer though October 2010. On
June 28, 2013 Mr. Anthony resigned as Flux Power’s Chief Executive Officer to return full time to his position as Chief Executive Officer of Epic Boats to manage
the day to day operations. Epic Boats is primarily engaged in the business of providing recreational and competitive watercrafts, including an electric wake
boarding boat. From 2005 to 2009 Mr. Anthony served as the Chief Operating Officer of Aptera Motors, Inc., a Delaware company engaged in the business of
manufacturing a three-wheel electric car (“Aptera Motors”) and was a Director of that company from 2005 to 2010. Aptera Motors and Epic Boats are not affiliates
of the Company. Mr. Anthony is an expert in energy storage, electric propulsion systems, and advanced composite manufacturing processes. He has significant
experience building advanced products in the marine and commuter vehicle industries. Mr. Anthony has a Bachelor’s of Science degree in finance from the
Cameron School of Business.
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Michael Johnson, Director. Mr. Johnson has been our director since July 12, 2012. Mr. Johnson has been a director of Flux Power since it was
incorporated. Since 2002, Mr. Johnson has been a director and the Chief Executive Officer of Esenjay Petroleum Corporation (“Esenjay Petroleum”), a Delaware
company located in Corpus Christi, Texas which is engaged in the business oil exploration and production. Mr. Johnson’s primary responsibility at Esenjay
Petroleum was to manage the business and company as Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Johnson is director and shareholder of Esenjay Investments LLC, a
Delaware company engaged in business of investing in companies, and an affiliate of the Company owning approximately 42.6% of the issued and outstanding
shares of the Company. As a result of Mr. Johnson’s leadership and business experience he is an industry expert in the natural gas exploration industry and
brings a wealth of management and successful company building experience to the board. Mr. Johnson received a BS degree in mechanical engineering from
the University of Southwestern Louisiana in 1971.
James Gevarges, Director. Mr. Gevarges has been our director since July 14, 2012. Mr. Gevarges has been a director of Flux Power since it was
incorporated. Mr. Gevarges is the President, Chief Executive Officer, and a majority owner of Current Ways, Inc., a California company engaged in the business
of manufacturing chargers and other components for electric vehicles, which he founded in 2010. Current Ways, Inc. is not an affiliate of the Company. Since
1991 Mr. Gevarges has also been a Director and the Chief Executive Officer of LHV Power Corporation (formerly known as HiTek Power, Corp) (“LHV Power”), a
California company located in Santee, California which is engaged in the business of designing, manufacturing and marketing of power supply systems. Mr.
Gevarges is the sole owner of LHV Power. LHV Power is not an affiliate of the Company. Mr. Gevarges’ primary responsibilities at LHV Power are to manage the
company and business as Chief Executive Officer and President. As a result of Mr. Gevarges’ management and industry experience he is a power supply
industry expert and brings an enormous amount of manufacturing and successful company management experience to the Company. Mr. Gevarges has a
Bachelor’s of Science degree in electrical engineering from Louisiana State University.
Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings
To the best of our knowledge, during the past ten years, none of our directors or executive officers were involved in any of the following: (1) any
bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which such person was a general partner or executive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy or within
two years prior to that time; (2) any conviction in a criminal proceeding or being subject to a pending criminal proceeding (excluding traffic violations and other
minor offenses); (3) being subject to any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any court of competent jurisdiction,
permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting his involvement in any type of business, securities or banking activities; and (4)
being found by a court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the Securities and Exchange Commission or the Commodities Futures Trading Commission to
have violated a federal or state securities or commodities law, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended or vacated.
Board Leadership Structure and Role in Risk Oversight
The Board does not have a policy as to whether the roles of our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate. Instead, the Board makes this
determination based on what best serves our Company’s needs at any given time.
In its governance role, and particularly in exercising its duty of care and diligence, the Board is responsible for ensuring that appropriate risk
management policies and procedures are in place to protect the company’s assets and business. Our Board has broad and ultimate oversight responsibility for
our risk management processes and programs and executive management is responsible for the day-to-day evaluation and management of risks to the
Company.
Audit Committee
We have not adopted an audit committee charter. Our Board of Directors serves the function of the audit committee. The Board of Directors intends to
establish an audit committee in the future.
Audit Committee Financial Expert
Our Board of Directors has not established a separate audit committee within the meaning of Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Instead, our entire Board of Directors acts as the audit committee within the meaning of Section 3(a)(58)(B) of the
Exchange Act. In addition, our Board of Directors has not made a determination as to whether a director on the Board meets the definition of an “audit committee
financial expert” within the meaning of Item 407(d)(5) of Regulation S-K. We continue to seek candidates for outside directors and for a financial expert to serve
on a separate audit committee when we establish one.
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In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, the Board has reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements with management and discussed with the
independent auditors the matters required to be discussed by SAS 61. Management is responsible for the financial statements and the reporting process,
including the system of internal controls. The independent auditors are responsible for expressing an opinion on the conformity of those audited financial
statements with generally accepted accounting principles.
The Board of Director discussed with the independent auditors, the auditors’ independence from the management of the Company and received written
disclosures and the letter from the independent accountants required by Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1.
After Board of Director’s review and discussions, as mentioned above, the Board of director recommended that the audited financial statements be
included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Compensation Committee and Governance and Nomination Committee
We have not adopted a compensation committee and governance committee charters. The Board of Directors currently serves these functions. The
Board of Directors will consider establishing a compensation committee and governance committee in the future. There were no material changes to the
procedures by which security holders may recommend nominees to our Board of Directors.
Code of Conduct and Ethics
We have not adopted a Code of Conduct for our Chief Executive Officer and Senior Executive Officers.
Indemnification Agreements
We executed a standard form of indemnification agreement (“Indemnification Agreement”) with each of our Board members and executive officers (each,
an “Indemnitee”).
Pursuant to and subject to the terms, conditions and limitations set forth in the Indemnification Agreement, we agreed to indemnify each Indemnitee,
against any and all expenses incurred in connection with the Indemnitee’s service as our officer, director and or agent, or is or was serving at our request as a
director, officer, employee, agent or advisor of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, limited liability company, or other entity or enterprise but only
if the Indemnitee acted in good faith and in a manner he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to our best interest, and in the case of a criminal
proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe that his conduct was unlawful. In addition, the indemnification provided in the indemnification agreement is
applicable whether or not negligence or gross negligence of the Indemnitee is alleged or proven. Additionally, the Indemnification Agreement establishes
processes and procedures for indemnification claims, advancement of expenses and costs and contribution obligations.
Compliance with Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires our executive officers and directors and persons who own more than 10% of
a registered class of our equity securities, to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (hereinafter referred to as the “Commission”) initial statements of
beneficial ownership, reports of changes in ownership and Annual Reports concerning their ownership, of Common Stock and other of our equity securities on
Forms 3, 4, and 5, respectively. Executive officers, directors and greater than 10% stockholders are required by Commission regulations to furnish us with copies
of all Section 16(a) reports they file. Based solely on information available to us in public filings, we believe that all reports required by Section 16(a) for
transactions in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, were timely filed.
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ITEM 11 — EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Compensation for our Named Executive Officers
Our named executive officers during fiscal 2013 consist of our interim and former Executive Officers as of June 28, 2013 and our former Chief
Intellectual Property Officer and Corporate Secretary, our former Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer. The following tables and narratives address
and explain the compensation provided to our named executive officers in fiscal 2013 and 2012.

Salary
($)

Stock
Awards ($)
(2)

Bonus
($) (1)

Non-Equity
Incentive Plan
Compensation
($) (4)

Option
Awards ($)
(3)

All Other
Compensation ($)

Name and Principal Position

Year

Ronald F. Dutt (7),
Chief Financial Officer and Interim Chief Executive Officer and Interim
Corporate Secretary

2013

$

69,881

$

—

$

—

$

—

$

—

$

—

$

Total ($)

2012

$

—

$

—

$

—

$

—

$

—

$

—

$

—

Christopher L. Anthony(5),
Chairman of the Board and former Chief Executive Officer

2013
2012

$
$

174,427
127,200

$
$

—
30,000

$
$

—
—

$
$

—
9,000(5)

$
$

—
—

$
$

—
—

$
$

174,427
166,200

Stephen G. Jackson (6),
Former Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer

2013
2012

$
$

85,985
64,992

$
$

—
25,560

$
$

—
—

$
$

—
223,000(6)

$
$

—
—

$
$

—
—

$
$

85,985
313,552

69,881

(1) Amounts listed under the “Bonus” column for fiscal 2013 and 2012 reflect the discretionary bonuses paid (if any) to each of the Named Executive Officers.
(2) The “Stock Awards” column is the grant date fair value of stock awards issued during each respective year, adjusted where applicable for our assessment of
the probability that performance conditions will be achieved. The grant date fair value was determined in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC Topic
718. There were no stock awards issued in fiscal ended June 30, 2013 or 2012.
(3) The “Option Awards” column is the grant date fair value of stock options granted during each respective year, adjusted where applicable for our assessment
of the probability that performance conditions will be achieved. The grant date fair value was determined in accordance with the provisions of FASB ASC
Topic 718 using the Black-Scholes valuation model with assumptions described in more detail in the notes to our audited financial statements included in
this report. None of the stock options with performance conditions that were granted in fiscal ended June 30, 2013 or 2012 were considered probable of
achieving their vesting conditions at the date of grant. Therefore the grant date fair value of such performance awards for purposes of the Summary
Compensation Table was zero.
(4) There were no bonuses paid in fiscal 2013 or 2012 related to Incentive Plan performance.
(5) Mr. Anthony was granted on October 1, 2011 options to purchase 100,000 shares or 295,470 as adjusted (see Note 1, to the financial statements) of our
common stock at $0.04 per share. The options vest quarterly over a 2-year period and expire on October 1, 2021. The fair value of the option award as of
June 30, 2012 was approximately $9,000. Mr. Anthony’s options were granted for his participation as a Board of Director. Subsequently, o n July 27,2013,
the Company's board of director's approved on a request by Mr. Anthony to forfeit al l of his, including 258,537 shares that were exercisable at June 30,
2013.
(6) Mr. Jackson was granted on January 25, 2012 options to purchase 300,000 shares or 886,411 as adjusted (see Note 1, to the financial statements) of our
common stock at $0.34 per share. The fair value of the option award as of June 30, 2012 was approximately $223,000 and unvested. As a result of the
termination of Mr. Jackson on December 7, 2012, his options have been forfeited.
(7) Mr. Dutt's Employment Agreement effective December 11,2012 provided for option grants of 200,000 and on July 30, 2013 Mr. Dutt was granted 1,750,000
shares of non-qualified stock options subject to certain vesting restrictions, respectively.
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Benefit Plans
We do not have any profit sharing plan or similar plans for the benefit of our officers, directors or employees. However, we may establish such plan in
the future.
Equity Compensation Plan Information
Flux Power adopted the 2010 Stock Option Plan (“Option Plan”) which reserved 2,000,000 shares of common stock for issuance upon exercise of
options. As of June 30, 2013, the number of shares of common stock outstanding under the Option Plan was 2,527,388. Subsequent to the Company’s Reverse
Acquisition on June 14, 2012, options under the Option Plan were no longer available for issuance. Alternatively, non-qualified option grants can be approved by
the Company’s Board of Directors. Further issuance by the Board of Director’s will require submission of a registration statement with the SEC to establish a new
option plan.
The following table sets forth certain information concerning our unexercised options, stock that has not vested, and equity compensation plan awards
outstanding as of June 30, 2013 for the named executive officers below:
Option Awards(1)

Name
Christopher L. Anthony (2)

Award
Grant
Date
10/01/2011

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options
Exercisable

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options
Unexercisable

258,537

36,933

Stock Awards

Equity
Incentive
Plan
Awards:
Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Unearned
Options

Option
Exercise
Price
($)
—

$

Option
Expiration
Date

0.04

Number of
Shares or
Units of
Stock That
Have Not
Vested

10/1/2021

36,933

Market Value
of Shares or
Units of Stock
That Have Not
Vested
($)
$

3,693

Equity
Incentive
Plan
Awards:
Market or
Payout
Value of
Unearned
Shares,
Units or
Other
Rights
That Have
Not
Vested
($)

Equity
Incentive
Plan
Awards:
Number of
Unearned
Shares,
Units or
Other
Rights
That
Have Not
Vested
—

$

—

(1) The fair value of each option grant is estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Expected volatility is calculated based on
the historical volatility of the Company’s stock. The risk free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield for a term equal to the expected life of the
options at the time of grant.
(2) Mr. Anthony resigned on June 28, 2013 as the Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Anthony’s options were granted for his participation as a Board of Director.
Subsequently, on July 27,2013, the Company's board of director's approved on a request by Mr. Anthony to forfeit all of his, including 258,537 shares that
were exercisable at June 30, 2013.
Compensation of Non-Executive Directors
As of June 30, 2013, no equity awards were issued to any of our non-executive directors.
Aggregated Option/SAR exercised and Fiscal year-end Option/SAR value table
Neither our executive officers nor the other individuals listed in the tables above, exercised options or SARs during the last fiscal year.
Long-term incentive plans
No long term incentive awards were granted by us in the last fiscal year.
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Employment contracts and termination of employment and change-in-control arrangements
We have entered into an Employment Agreement with our Chief Financial Officer, Ronald F. Dutt effective December 11, 2012. Mr. Dutt is an “at-will”
employee of Flux Power Holdings, Inc. The Employment Agreement provides an annual salary of $170,000 and option grants of 200,000 shares of non-qualified
stock options, subject to the following vesting schedule: 25% shares vest after 12 months, and remaining shares vest monthly over 36 months. Effective May 27,
2013 Mr. Dutt agreed to a temporary reduced salary of $2,776 per month or $33,312 per year. On June 28, 2013 Flux’s Chief Executive Officer and President,
Christopher Anthony tendered his resignation and the Board of Directors appointed Mr. Dutt as interim Chief Executive Officer and Corporate Secretary, to
assume the duties as such and to continue to hold the position of Chief Financial Officer until further notice from the Board of Directors. Mr. Dutt is not paid
additional compensation for his interim role. However, related to this added responsibility, effective July 26, 2013, the Board has authorized an increase in his
salary from $2,776 to $11,333 per month, reflecting 80% restoration of the salary identified in his employment agreement dated December 7, 2012. Additionally,
Mr. Dutt was granted 1,750,000 non-qualified stock options at an exercise price equal to $0.10, the fair market value of the Company’s common stock on July
30, 2013, with a vesting schedule of 50% immediately and 50% quarterly over the next four years, pursuant to the terms of the Company's form of Non-Qualified
Option Agreement. All other terms of Mr. Dutt's employment agreement, dated December 11, 2012 remains unchanged.
On June 28, 2013, Christopher L. Anthony tendered his resignation as the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and President. Mr. Anthony will remain on
the Company’s Board of Directors as Chairman of the Board. Mr. Anthony is a founder of Company and worked as an employee on an “at-will” basis. Mr.
Anthony was paid an annual salary of $201,600. During the period from May 27, 2013 to June 28, 2013 (his resignation) Mr. Anthony agreed to a temporary
reduced salary of $2,776 per month or $33,312 per year. Mr. Anthony was eligible to receive performance bonuses and participation in the Company’s incentive
plan. Mr. Anthony is subject to the Company’s Non-Disclosure Agreement and Confidentiality Statement.
On December 7, 2012, Stephen G. Jackson was terminated as the Company’s Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operations Officer. In connection with
Mr. Jackson’s departure, he was not entitled to any severance pay pursuant to the terms of his employment agreement effective January 12, 2012. Prior to his
termination Mr. Jackson was paid an annual salary of $170,000 and was eligible to receive performance bonuses and participation in the Company’s incentive
plan. Mr. Jackson was granted on January 25, 2012 options to purchase 300,000 shares or 886,411 as adjusted (see Note 1, to the financial statements) of our
common stock at $0.34 per share, however as a result of his termination all granted options to Mr. Jackson have been forfeited, there were no vested shares of
December 7, 2012. Mr. Jackson continues to be subject to certain provisions of the Employment Agreement relating to certain confidential information, inventions
and notification of new employer, which were agreed to survive the termination of Mr. Jackson’s employment and the Employment Agreement. In addition, Mr.
Jackson is also subject to the Company’s Non-Disclosure Agreement and Confidentiality Statement.
There were no performance based bonuses paid for fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation
We have not established a Compensation Committee and our Board of Directors will serve this function.
Director Independence
We currently do not have any independent directors as the term “independent” is defined by the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market.
ITEM 12 — SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
As used in this section, the term beneficial ownership with respect to a security is defined by Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, as consisting of sole or shared voting power (including the power to vote or direct the vote) and/or sole or shared investment power (including the
power to dispose of or direct the disposition of) with respect to the security through any contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship or otherwise, subject
to community property laws where applicable. As of September 6, 2013 we had a total of 47,555,576 shares of common stock issued outstanding.
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The following table sets forth, as of September 6, 2013: (a) the names and addresses of each beneficial owner of more than five percent of our common
stock known to us, the number of shares of common stock beneficially owned by each such person, and the percent of our common stock so owned; and (b) the
names and addresses of each director and executive officer, the number of shares our common stock beneficially owned, and the percentage of our common
stock so owned, by each such person, and by all of our directors and executive officers as a group. Unless otherwise indicated, the business address of each of
our directors and executive officers is c/o Flux Power Holdings, Inc., 985 Poinsettia Avenue, Suite A, Vista, California 92081. Each person has sole voting and
investment power with respect to the shares of our common stock, except as otherwise indicated. Beneficial ownership consists of a direct interest in the shares
of common stock, except as otherwise indicated.
Amount and Nature of
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner

Beneficial Ownership

Directors and Named Executive Officers
Christopher L. Anthony, Director and Former Executive Officer
Ronald F. Dutt, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
Michael Johnson (Esenjay Investments, LLC)
James Gevarges
Current Executive Officers & Directors as a Group (4 people)

(1)

12,077,353(2)
20,244,827(3)
6,167,945(4)
38,490,125

Percentage of
Ownership

25.4%
42.6%
13.0%
81.0%

(1) As used in this section, the term beneficial ownership with respect to a security is defined by Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended, as consisting of sole or shared voting power (including the power to vote or direct the vote) and/or sole or shared investment power (including the
power to dispose of or direct the disposition of) with respect to the security through any contract, arrangement, understanding, relationship or otherwise, subject
to community property laws where applicable. Accordingly, shares of common stock which an individual or group has a right to acquire within 60 days pursuant to
the exercise of options or warrants are deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of such individual or group, but are not
deemed to be beneficially owned and outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of any other person shown in the table.
(2) Includes 258,537 stock options, all of which are vested.
(3) Includes shares held by Esenjay Investments, LLC, a Texas limited liability company of which Mr. Johnson is the sole director and beneficial owner.
Includes 258,537 stock options, all of which are vested. The options have been adjusted given effect to the Share Exchange Ratio, see Note 1, to the financial
statements.
(4) Includes 258,537 stock options, all of which are vested. The options have been adjusted given effect to the Share Exchange Ratio, see Note 1, to the
financial statements.
ITEM 13 — CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
Transactions with Related Persons
In connection with the Reverse Acquisition, Mr. Anthony, our former Chief Executive Officer, President and Chairman of the Board, and Director James
Gevarges, and Esenjay Investments, LLC, an entity which Director Michael Johnson, severally agreed not to offer, sell, assign, transfer, pledge, contract to sell,
or otherwise dispose of any shares of our common stock or securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable into our common stock beneficially owned
by such shareholder, for a period of eighteen (18) months from the closing date (or December 31, 2013) of the Reverse Acquisition, except during the period
after the first anniversary of the closing date and a period of six (6) months thereafter, in such an amount which constitutes less than three percent (3%) in the
aggregate of such shareholder’s beneficial ownership of our common stock per month.
Advisory Agreement – Baytree Capital - Related Party
On June 14, 2012, the Company entered into an Advisory Agreement (“Advisory Agreement”) with Baytree Capital, a significant shareholder of the
Company, pursuant to which Baytree Capital agreed to provide business and advisory services for 24 months in exchange for 100,000 restricted shares of our
newly issued common stock at the commencement of each six (6) month period in return for its services, and a warrant to purchase 1,837,777 restricted shares
of our common stock for a period of five (5) years at an exercise price of $0.41 per share (“Advisory Agreement Warrants”). In connection with this agreement,
the estimated fair value of the warrants issued in the approximate amount of $3,258,000 was recorded as prepaid advisory fees, which is expected to be
amortized on a pro-rata basis over the term of the agreement. During the twelve months ended June 30, 2013, we recorded expense of approximately
$1,629,000 based on the amortization of the prepaid advisory fees, and as of June 30, 2013 the total remaining balance of the prepaid advisory fees was
approximately $1,561,000. Baytree Capital agreed to forego issuance of common stock to them for the first six-month period beginning June 14, 2012 of fiscal
2012. (See Note 7, to the financial statements)
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Loans from Stockholder
(a) Loans Converted into Common Stock
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the Company had $200,000 outstanding on a $400,000 (Inventory Funding Loan) revolving note payable
with a stockholder. The note had a stated interest rate of 8% per annum and was for inventory purchases. Interest accrued daily and was payable upon maturity
or conversion as amended. Advances on the note were collateralized by substantially all assets of the Company.
The Company had another revolving note payable (Operating Capital Loan) in the amount of $1,000,000, due to the same stockholder. During the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the Company had $830,000 outstanding on this note. The note bore interest at 8% per annum and a maturity date of May 2012.
The purpose of this note was to provide bridge capital for financing. Advances on the note are collateralized by substantially all of the assets of the Company.
In August 2011, the Company amended the terms of both the Inventory Funding Loan and Operating Capital Loan to provide for conversion feature of
the notes payable into shares of the Company’s common stock at $1 per share.
In September 2011, the Company entered into an additional note payable (Short-Term Loan) agreement with the same stockholder for $150,000. The
note matured in May 2012 and bore interest at 8% per annum as amended, and is convertible into the Company’s equity securities in the same terms as the
above Loans.
In December 2011, the combined full outstanding principal balance of $1,180,000 on the Inventory Funding Loan, Operating Capital Loan and ShortTerm notes payable together with $84,228 of accrued interest on these notes were converted into 3,735,419 (1,264,228 shares pre-reverse Acquisition) shares
of common stock at a conversion price of $0.34 ($1.00 per share pre-reverse Acquisition).
(b) Stockholder Notes Payable and Line of Credit
In October 2011, we entered into a revolving promissory note agreement with Esenjay Investments, LLC (“Esenjay”), a major stockholder who
beneficially owns approximately 42.6% of our common stock for $1,000,000. Mr. Michael Johnson, our director, is the director and shareholder of Esenjay. The
revolving promissory note bears interest at 8%, is due on September 30, 2013, as amended, and is secured by substantially all of the assets of the Company. As
of June 30, 2013 the balance outstanding payable on the note was $1,000,000. There are no further funds available under this note agreement. As of September
30, 2013, we have not paid the amount due under the Revolving Note on the maturity date and are not in compliance with the terms of the Revolving Note. As a
result, the unpaid balance is subject to a default interest rate of 18% or the highest rate allowed by law (whichever is less) and Esenjay has a right to exercise its
rights as a secured party.
On March 7, 2012, we entered into an additional note payable agreement with Esenjay for $250,000. The note is due on March 7, 2014 and bears
interest at 8% per annum. As of June 30, 2013, the balance outstanding payable on the note was $250,000 there are no further funds available under this note
agreement.
On September 24, 2012, the Company entered into a Line of Credit with Esenjay for $1,500,000. Borrowings under the Line of Credit is secured by the
assets of the Company and bears interest at 8% per annum, with all unpaid principal and accrued interest due and payable on September 24, 2014. The
revolving promissory note bears interest at 8% per annum and principal and accrued interest are due and payable on September 24, 2014. During the twelve
months ended June 30, 2013, the Company made draws of $1,218,000 under this agreement, and as of June 30, 2013, the balance outstanding was
$1,218,000. Subsequent to June 30, 2013, the Company made additional draws of $403,000 under this agreement.
As of October 9, 2013, Company is in the process of renegotiating its stockholder notes payable and line of credit with Esenjay to extend the maturity
dates through December 31, 2015. In addition, the parties are negotiating that further draws on the line of credit will be at a reduced interest rate. In addition, it is
contemplated that Esenjay will be granted an option to convert up to $400,000 of outstanding debt and interest to common stock at $0.06 per share by December
31, 2013, and an option to convert outstanding debt and interest to common stock at $0.30 per share until December 31, 2015.
(c) Stockholder Agreements
During 2009, the Company entered into a cancelable Term Sheet Agreement with a LHV Power Corporation, an entity owned by James Gevarges, one
of our major shareholders. Mr. Gevarges is also the Chief Executive Officer and President of LHV Power. Pursuant to the Term Sheet Agreement, Flux Power
was appointed as a distributor of LHV Power battery charging products allowing Flux Power to sell the products either separately or as part of an energy storage
solution. Additionally, Flux Power was required to develop a microprocessor control board (“MCB”), and the associated software to enable communication
between the parties’ respective products which entitles Flux Power to royalties for any such units sold by the related entity. Pursuant to the Term Sheet
Agreement Flux Power may purchase the products at the then current price list for distributors. Further, under the Term Sheet Agreement, if LHV Power sells its
products to a different distributor Flux Power is entitled to a distribution fee equal to 20% of the gross profits on such sale. This distribution fee and royalties are
capped at a total of $200,000. The chargers are not currently under commercial production and therefore no Distribution and Royalty Fee has been received by
Flux Power. On September 1, 2010, with our consent, LHV assigned the Term Sheet Agreement to Current Ways Inc. a different company that is owned by Mr.
Gevarges. The parties are also subject to restrictions on the use and disclosure of confidential information of the other party until April 1, 2013.
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Pursuant to our standard purchase order terms and conditions, during the twelve months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company purchased
approximately $29,000 and $85,000, respectively, of charger products from Current Ways, Inc., which was not subject to the distribution fee or royalties referred
to above under the Term Sheet Agreement.
On August 1, 2009, the Company entered into a Manufacturing Implementation Agreement (the “Manufacturing Agreement”) with LHV Power. Pursuant
to the Manufacturing Agreement Flux Power granted LHV Power a right of first refusal to manufacture our battery management systems. Further, under the
Manufacturing Agreement, Flux Power agreed to pay for any specialized tooling LHV Power may require to manufacture Flux Power’s battery management
systems. Under the Manufacturing Agreement, Flux Power will retain ownership of all intellectual property developed under the Manufacturing Agreement. The
Manufacturing Agreement expires on August 1, 2014. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 Flux Power paid approximately $108,000 and
$263,000 respectively, to LHV Power pursuant to the Manufacturing Agreement. Although there are a limited number of manufacturers which could produce the
battery management system, we believe other manufacturers could produce the products on comparable terms. A change in manufacturer, however, could
cause a delay in manufacturing.
On July 1, 2011, Flux Power entered into a Sublease Agreement with Epic Boats, LLC (“Epic Boats”). Christopher Anthony, our former Chief Executive
Officer and President and current Chairman of our Board, owns 35% of Epic Boats. Pursuant to the Terms of the Sublease Agreement, Epic Boats subleased
approximately 7,200 square feet of Flux Power’s former Escondido office space for a monthly payment of $6,640. The Sublease Agreement was terminated
January 1, 2012 of fiscal 2012.
Effective July 1, 2013, the Company relocated its principal office and manufacturing to the Epic Boats facility in Vista, California. The Company entered
into a month-to-month sub-lease agreement for shared space with Epic Boats. The agreement provides for monthly payments of approximately $4,950.
The Company recorded rent expense, net of sublease income during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, of approximately $161,000 and
approximately $106,000, respectively.
(e) Title Transfer and Deposit Agreements – Related Parties
On October 21, 2009, Flux Power entered into an agreement with Epic Boats where Epic Boats assigned and transferred to Flux Power the entire right,
title, and interest into products, technology, intellectual property, inventions and all improvements thereof, as defined in the table below.
Product

Description

Battery Box Design

All hardware, tooling and design reduced to practice otherwise of the battery housings which include the integration of a
battery management system.
Top communication protocol that communicates through the CAN bus
All hardware, software and tooling reduced to practice or otherwise of the throttle controller
Interfaces to the motor and generator controller to the diagnostic software

CAN Communication Protocol
CAN based Throttle Controller
BMS Head End Interfaces

As of this date, Flux Power began selling products to Epic Boats under Flux Power’s standard terms and conditions and has continued to sell products to
Epic Boats as a customer. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, Flux Power sold approximately $5,000 and $19,000, respectively, of product to
Epic Boats. The customer deposits balance received from Epic Boats at June 30, 2013 and 2012 is approximately $138,000 and $200,000, respectively. There
were no receivables outstanding from Epic Boats as of June 30, 2013.
Promoters and Certain Control Persons
The Reverse Acquisition resulted in a change of control by issuance of our securities to the following entities and individuals:
· Christopher Anthony . Mr. Anthony, our Chairman, former Chief Executive Officer and President, is one of our major shareholders which beneficially
owns approximately 25.4% of our common stock.
· Esenjay Investments, LLC. Esenjay Investment, LLC is one of our major shareholders which beneficially own approximately 42.6% of our common
stock. Mr. Michael Johnson, our director, is the director and shareholder of this entity.
· James Gevarges. Mr. Gevarges, our director, is one of our major shareholders who beneficially own approximately 13% of our common stock.
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Director Independence
We currently do not have any independent directors as the term “independent” is defined by the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market.
ITEM 14 — PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.
Independent Auditor
Prior to the Reverse Acquisition, Friedman LLP was our auditor. In connection with Reverse Acquisition, we dismissed Friedman LLP and engaged
Mayer Hoffman McCann P.C. (“Mayer”). On August 9, 2012, our Board of Directors approved the dismissal of Mayer and our Board of Directors serving as the
Audit Committee appointed Squar, Milner, Peterson, Miranda & Williamson, LLP (“Squar”) as our independent auditor for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.
Fees Paid to Principal Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm(s)
The aggregate fees billed to our Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm(s), for fiscal years ended June 30, are as follows:

Audit fees (1)(2)
Audit related fees
Tax fees
All other fees
Total

2013
97,000 $
—
—
—
97,000 $

$

$

2012
181,000
—
—
—
181,000

(1) For 2013, fees billed to Squar is approximately $88,000 and Mayer $9,000, respectively.
(2) For 2012, fees billed to Squar is approximately $37,000 and Mayer $144,000, respectively.
Audit Fees
Audit fees are the aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered by our independent auditors for the audit of our annual financial statements,
the review of the financial statements included in each of our quarterly reports and services provided in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or
engagements.
Audit Related Fees
Audit related fees are the aggregate fees billed by our independent auditors for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the
performance of the audit or review of our financial statements and are not described in the preceding category.
Tax Fees
Tax fees are billed by our independent auditors for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning.
All Other Fees
All other fees include fees billed by our independent auditors for products or services other than as described in the immediately preceding three
categories.
The Company’s Board of Directors serves as the Audit Committee and has unanimously approved all audit and non-audit services provided by the
independent auditors. The independent accountants and management are required to periodically report to the Board of Directors regarding the extent of
services provided by the independent accountants, and the fees for the services performed to date. Currently the Board of Directors is in the process of
identifying a tax preparer for the Company’s tax compliance requirements. The Company has not adopted a Charter for the Audit Committee as of June 30,
2013.
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PART IV
ITEM 15 — EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules.
1. The following financial statements of Flux Power Holdings, Inc., and Report of Squar, Milner, Peterson, Miranda & Williamson, LLP, independent registered
public accounting firm, are included in this report:
Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm – Squar, Milner, Peterson, Miranda & Williamson, LLP

F-1

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2013 and 2012

F-2

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

F-4

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Deficit for the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

F-5

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

F-6

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F-7

2. Financial Statement Schedules: All schedules have been omitted because the required information is included in the financial statements or notes thereto or
because they are not required.
3. See Subsection (b) below:
(b) Exhibits
The following exhibits are filed as part of this Report
Exhibit
No.
2.1
2.2
3.1
3.2
10.1
10.2
10.3
10.4
10.5
10.6
10.7
10.8
10.9
10.10

Description
Securities Exchange Agreement dated May 18, 2012 (1)
Amendment No. 1 to the Securities Exchange Agreement dated June 13, 2012 (2)
Restated Articles of Incorporation (4)
Amended and Restated Bylaws of Flux Power Holdings, Inc. (3)
Esenjay Secondary Revolving Promissory Note for Operating Capital dated October 1, 2011
Esenjay Bridge Loan Promissory Note dated March 7, 2012 (2)

(2)

Amended and Restated Terms of Employment with Christopher Anthony with an effective date of January 1, 2010
Terms of Employment with Steve Jackson dated January 12, 2012 (2)
Flux Power Holdings, Inc. 2010 Stock Plan (2)
Flux Power Holdings, Inc. 2010 Stock Plan: Form of Stock Option Agreement (2)
LHV Power Corporation Term Sheet dated June 19, 2009 (2)
LHV Manufacturing Implementation Agreement dated August 1, 2009
Baytree Capital Advisory Agreement dated June 14, 2012 (2)
Form of Warrant (5)
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(2)

(2)

Exhibit
No.
10.11
10.12
10.13
10.14
10.15

Description
Form of Securities Purchase Agreement (5)
Form of Indemnification Agreement (2)
Vendor Agreement dated January 15, 2010

(6)

(2)

10.16
10.17

Form of Indemnification Agreement
Unrestricted and Open Line of Credit dated September 24, 2012
Terms of Employment with Ronald F. Dutt (8)
Agreement to Amend Unrestricted and Open Line of Credit (9)

21.1
31.1
31.2
32.1
32.2

Subsidiaries (2)
Certifications of the Chief Executive Officer under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.*
Certifications of the Chief Financial Officer under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.*
Certifications of the Chief Executive Officer under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.*
Certifications of the Chief Financial Officer under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.*

101.INS
101.SCH

XBRL Instance Document (10)
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema (10)
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase (10)
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase (10)
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase (10)

101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.FRE

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase

(7)

(10)

* Filed herewith.
(1) Incorporated by reference to Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 24, 2012
(2) Incorporated by reference to Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 18, 2012
(3) Incorporated by reference to Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 31, 2012
(4) Incorporated by reference to Form 8-K/A (Amendment No. 1) filed with the SEC on August 6, 2012
(5) Incorporated by reference to Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 26, 2012
(6) Incorporated by reference to Form 8-K/A (Amendment No. 2) filed with the SEC on August 29, 2012
(7) Incorporated by reference to Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 27, 2012
(8) Incorporated by reference to Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 13, 2013
(9) Incorporated by reference to Form 10-Q/A filed with the SEC on May 15, 2013
(10) XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language) information is furnished and not filed or a part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of
sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, is deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and otherwise is not subject to liability under these sections.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
Flux Power Holdings, Inc.
Dated: October 15, 2013

By:

/s/ Ronald F. Dutt
Ronald F. Dutt
Interim Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and
in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature

Title

Date

/s/ Ronald F. Dutt
Ronald F. Dutt

Interim Chief Executive Officer
(Interim Principal Executive Officer)
and
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer)

October 15, 2013

/s/ Christopher L. Anthony
Christopher L. Anthony

Chairman of the Board
(Former Principal Executive Officer)

October 15, 2013

/s/ Michael Johnson
Michael Johnson

Director

October 15, 2013

/s/ James Gevarges
James Gevarges

Director

October 15, 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Flux Power Holdings, Inc., (the “Company”) as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the
related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ deficit and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is
not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Flux Power
Holdings, Inc., as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the results of their operations and cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in
Note 2 the Company has incurred a significant accumulated deficit through June 30, 2013 and requires immediate additional financing to sustain its operations.
These factors, among others, raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans in regard to these matters
are also described in Note 2 to the financial statements. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty.
/s/ SQUAR, MILNER, PETERSON, MIRANDA & WILLIAMSON, LLP
San Diego, California
October 15, 2013
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FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
June 30, 2013 and 2012
2013

2012

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories, net
Prepaid advisory fees, current portion
Other current assets

$

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Other assets:
Prepaid advisory fees, net of current portion
Total assets

20,000
13,000
160,000
1,616,000
35,000

$

1,844,000

3,270,000

132,000

135,000

—

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued interest
Customer deposits
Customer deposits from related party
Warrant derivative liability
Deferred revenue
Notes payable to stockholder, current portion
Total current liabilities

1,976,000

$

4,966,000

$

370,000
211,000
135,000
5,000
138,000
143,000
—
1,250,000
2,252,000

$

293,000
323,000
19,000
2,000
200,000
4,943,000
480,000
600,000
6,860,000

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 6)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1,561,000

$

Long term liabilities:
Notes payable to stockholder, net of current portion

STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value: authorized 5,000,000 shares, none issued and outstanding
Common stock, $0.001 par value: authorized 145,000,000 shares, 47,355,576 and 44,070,930 shares issued and
outstanding as of June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2012, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders’ deficit
Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficit

812,000
54,000
736,000
1,629,000
39,000

1,218,000

250,000

3,470,000

7,110,000

—

—

47,000
2,436,000
(3,977,000 )
(1,494,000 )
$

1,976,000

44,000
2,140,000
(4,328,000 )
(2,144,000 )
$

4,966,000

FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
2013
Net revenue (1)
Cost of revenue

$

Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Selling and administrative expenses
Amortization of prepaid advisory fees
Research and development
Total operating expense
Operating loss
Other income (expense):
Change in fair value of warrant derivative liability
Interest expense, net
Net income (loss)
Net income (loss) per common share – basic
Net income (loss) per common share – diluted
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding – basic
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding – diluted

2012

772,000
756,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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5,930,000
4,769,000

16,000

1,161,000

2,569,000
1,719,000
992,000

2,368,000
—
590,000

5,280,000

2,958,000

(5,264,000 )

(1,797,000 )

5,731,000
(116,000)

(526,000)
(62,000)

$

351,000

$

(2,385,000 )

$
$

0.01
0.01

$
$

(0.06)
(0.06)

46,592,334
50,553,184

(1) Includes sales to related parties of $61,000 and $1,135,000 in 2013 and 2012 respectively

$

36,904,769
36,904,769

FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
Additional
Paid-in

Common Stock
Balance at June 30, 2011
Issuance of common stock – notes payable debt
conversion
Issuance of common stock – private placement
transactions, net
Reclassification of warrant as a derivative liability
Recapitalization of common stock – reverse
acquisition transactions
Stock-based compensation
Net loss
Balance at June 30, 2012
Issuance of common stock – services
Issuance of common stock – option exercises
Issuance of common stock – private placement
transactions, net
Reclassification of warrants as a derivative liability
Stock-based compensation
Net income
Balance at June 30, 2013

Shares
33,979,000

$

Amount
34,000

$

Capital
874,000

Accumulated
$

Deficit
(1,943,000)

$

Total
(1,035,000)

3,735,000

4,000

1,260,000

—

1,264,000

2,813,000
—

3,000
—

1,123,000
(1,159,000)

—
—

1,126,000
(1,159,000)

3,544,000
—
—
44,071,000
200,000
550,000

3,000
—
—
44,000
—
1,000

(3,000)
45,000
—
2,140,000
134,000
21,000

—
—
(2,385,000 )
(4,328,000)
—
—

—
45,000
(2,385,000 )
(2,144,000)
134,000
22,000

2,535,000
—
—
—
47,356,000

2,000
—
—
—
47,000

978,000
(931,000)
94,000
—
2,436,000

—
—
—
351,000
(3,977,000 )

980,000
(931,000)
94,000
351,000
(1,494,000 )

$

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$

$

FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
2013
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net Income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization of prepaid advisory fees
Inventory valuation adjustment
Change in fair value of warrant liability
Stock-based compensation
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued interest
Customer deposits
Customer deposits from related party
Deferred revenue
Net cash used in operating activities

$

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from stock options exercised
Issuance of common shares in financing
Proceeds from the sale of common stock and warrants, net of offering costs paid
Proceeds from stockholders note payable and line of credit
Net cash provided by financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash
Cash, beginning of period

2012

351,000

$

(2,385,000)

44,000
1,719,000
(77,000)
(5,731,000)
94,000

30,000
68,000
(26,000)
526,000
45,000

41,000
653,000
(7,000)
77,000
(112,000)
116,000
3,000
(62,000)
(480,000)
(3,371,000 )

(13,000)
1,263,000
71,000
284,000
316,000
23,000
(207,000)
(167,000)
(1,322,000 )
(1,494,000 )

(41,000)
(41,000)

(60,000)
(60,000)

22,000
2,000
978,000
1,618,000
2,620,000

—
3,000
1,123,000
1,000,000
2,126,000

(792,000)
812,000

572,000
240,000

Cash, end of period

$

20,000

$

812,000

Supplemental disclosures of Non-cash Investing and Financing Activities::
Conversion of debt
Issuance of warrants for advisory services
Issuance of common stock for services
Issuance of warrants to investors

$
$
$
$

—
—
134,000
931,000

$
$
$
$

1,264,000
3,258,000
—
1,159,000

Supplemental disclosures of Cash Flow Information :
Cash paid during the year for:
Income taxes

$

1,000

$

1,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2013 and 2012
NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS AND REVERSE ACQUISTION
Nature of Business
Flux Power Holdings, Inc. (“Flux” or the “Company”) was incorporated as Olerama, Inc. in Nevada in 1998. Since its incorporation, there have been
several name changes, including the change in January 2010 whereby the name of the Company was changed to Lone Pine Holdings, Inc. Following the
completion of a reverse merger on June 14, 2012, as described below, the Company’s operations have been conducted through its wholly owned subsidiary,
Flux Power, Inc. (“Flux Power”), a California corporation.
On May 23, 2012, by way of a merger, Lone Pine Holdings changed its name to Flux Power Holdings, Inc. (“FPH”) a Nevada corporation. The
transaction has been reflected as a reverse merger where FPH was the surviving legal entity after the merger. Flux Power remained the accounting acquirer.
The merger has been accounted for as a recapitalization as of the earliest period presented. Accordingly, the historical condensed consolidated financial
statements represented are those of Flux Power.
Flux Power develops and sells rechargeable advanced energy storage systems. The Company has structured its business around its core technology,
“The Battery Management System” (“BMS”). The Company’s BMS provides three critical functions to their battery systems: cell balancing, monitoring and error
reporting. Using its proprietary management technology, the Company is able to offer complete integrated energy storage solutions or custom modular
standalone systems to their clients. The Company has also developed a suite of complementary technologies and products that accompany their core products.
Sales during the twelve months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 were primarily to customers located throughout the United States.
As used herein, the terms “we,” “us,” “our,” and “Company” mean Flux Power Holdings, Inc., unless otherwise indicated. All dollar amounts herein are in
U.S. dollars unless otherwise stated.
Reverse Acquisition of Flux Power Inc.
On June 14, 2012, we completed the acquisition of Flux Power (the “Reverse Acquisition”) pursuant to a Securities Exchange Agreement dated May 18,
2012 (“Exchange Agreement”) by and among Flux Power, and its shareholders, Mr. Christopher Anthony, Esenjay Investments, LLC, and Mr. James Gevarges
(collectively the “Flux Power Shareholders”). In connection with the Reverse Acquisition, we purchased 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of common
stock of Flux Power from the Flux Power Shareholders in exchange for 37,714,514 newly issued shares our common stock (“Exchange Shares”) based on an
exchange ratio of 2.9547039 (“Share Exchange Ratio”). As a result of the Reverse Acquisition, the Flux Power Shareholders collectively owned approximately
91% of the issued and outstanding shares of our common stock, and Flux Power became our wholly-owned operating subsidiary. The Reverse Acquisition was
accounted for as a recapitalization affected by a share exchange, wherein Flux Power is considered the acquirer for accounting and financial reporting purposes
and has been reflected in the accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements as of the earliest period presented. The assets and liabilities of the
acquired entity have been brought forward at their book value and no goodwill has been recognized.
NOTE 2 – GOING CONCERN
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which contemplates the realization of assets and the
satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company has incurred an accumulated deficit of $3,976,000 through June 30, 2013 and as of
June 30, 2013 had limited cash or other working capital. To date, the Company’s revenues and operating cash flows have not been sufficient to sustain its
operations and it has relied on debt and equity financing to fund its operations. The Company obtained proceeds of $403,000 subsequent to June 30, 2013
through a credit facility with a stockholder and is in the process of renegotiating terms and extension of the maturity dates of this facility and other matured debt
instruments with the same stockholder to December 31, 2015 (see Note 5). However, there is currently no additional availability under the Company’s existing
debt agreements and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern is dependent on obtaining additional financing sufficient to sustain operations until
positive cash flow from operations and profitability can be achieved. These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments that would be necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going
concern and, therefore, be required to liquidate its assets and discharge its liabilities in other than the normal course of business and at amounts that may differ
from those reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Management plans to continue to seek additional equity financing to generate the capital required to fund its current operations and future planned growth.
As part of the Company’s financing plan established in 2012, management engaged a financial advisor to assist in securing additional equity capital of up to $2.5
million earlier this year. While this effort has not yet produced funding, the Company has both engaged another financial advisor and is pursuing other
investment structures that management believes will generate the necessary funding to the Company. Although, management believes that the additional
required funding will be obtained, there is no guarantee the Company will be able to obtain the additional required funds or that funds will be available on terms
acceptable to the Company. If such funds are not available, management will be required to curtail its investments in additional sales and marketing and product
development resources, and capital expenditures, which may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s future cash flows and results of operations, and
its ability to continue operating as a going concern.
NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies consistently applied in the preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial
statements follows:
Basis of Presentation and Consolidation
The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). This contemplates the realization of assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the ordinary course of business
(see note 2).
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
and include the Flux Power Holdings, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiary Flux Power Inc. after elimination of all intercompany accounts and transactions.
Subsequent Events
Management has evaluated events subsequent to June 30, 2013 through the date the accompanying consolidated financial statements were filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission for transactions and other events that may require adjustment of and/or disclosure in such financial statements.
Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation for comparative purposes.
Use of Estimates in Financial Statement Preparation
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, as well as certain financial statement disclosures. Significant estimates include valuations of equity
instruments and deferred tax assets. While management believes that the estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements are
appropriate, actual results could differ from these estimates.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
As of June 30, 2013, cash totaled approximately $20,000 and consists of funds held in a non-interest bearing bank deposit account. The Company
considers all highly liquid short term investments with maturities of less than three months when acquired to be cash equivalents. The Company had no other
cash equivalents at June 30, 2013 and 2012.
Fair Values of Financial Instruments
The carrying amount of our accounts payable, accounts receivable, accrued liabilities, notes payable and line of credit, and warrant derivative liability
approximates their estimated fair values due to the short-term maturities of those financial instruments. The carrying amount of notes payable approximates their
fair value due to the short maturity of the notes and as the interest approximates current market interest rates for the similar instruments. Derivative liabilities
recorded in connection with warrants are reported at their estimated fair value, with changes in fair value being reported in results of operations (see Note 8).
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Management has concluded that it is not practical to determine the estimated fair value of amounts due to related parties because the transactions
cannot be assumed to have consummated at arm’s length, the terms are not deemed to be market terms, there are no quoted values available for these
instruments, and an independent valuation would not be practical due to the lack of data regarding similar instruments, if any, and the associated potential costs.
Except for derivative liabilities, we do not have any other assets or liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and, during the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, did not have any other assets or liabilities that were measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis.
Accounts Receivable and Customer Deposits
Accounts receivable are carried at their estimated collectible amounts. The Company may require advance deposits from its customers prior to shipment
of the ordered products. The Company has not experienced collection issues related to its accounts receivable, and has not recorded an allowance for doubtful
accounts at June 30, 2013 or June 30, 2012.
Inventories
Inventories consist primarily of battery management systems and the related subcomponents, and are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or
market. The Company evaluates inventories to determine if write-downs are necessary due to obsolescence or if the inventory levels are in excess of anticipated
demand at market value based on consideration of historical sales and product development plans. The Company recorded an adjustment related to obsolete
inventory in the amount of approximately $77,000 and $26,000 during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation and amortization are
provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives, of the related assets ranging from three to ten years, or, in the case of leasehold
improvements, over the lesser of the useful life of the related asset or the lease term.
Stock-based Compensation
Pursuant to the provisions of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 718-10, Compensation–
Stock Compensation, which establishes accounting for equity instruments exchanged for employee service, we utilize the Black-Scholes option pricing model to
estimate the fair value of employee stock option awards at the date of grant, which requires the input of highly subjective assumptions, including expected
volatility and expected life. Changes in these inputs and assumptions can materially affect the measure of estimated fair value of our share-based compensation.
These assumptions are subjective and generally require significant analysis and judgment to develop. When estimating fair value, some of the assumptions will
be based on, or determined from, external data and other assumptions may be derived from our historical experience with stock-based payment arrangements.
The appropriate weight to place on historical experience is a matter of judgment, based on relevant facts and circumstances.
Common stock or equity instruments such as warrants issued for services to non-employees are valued at their estimated fair value at the measurement
date (the date when a firm commitment for performance of the services is reached, typically the date of issuance, or when performance is complete). If the total
value exceeds the par value of the stock issued, the value in excess of the par value is added to the additional paid-in-capital account.
Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred, price is fixed or determinable, and
collectability of the selling price is reasonably assured. Delivery occurs when risk of loss is passed to the customer, as specified by the terms of the applicable
customer agreements. When a right of return exists, contractually or implied, the Company recognizes revenue on the sell-through method. Under this method,
revenue is not recognized upon delivery of the inventory components. Instead, the Company records deferred revenue upon delivery and recognize revenue
when the inventory components are sold through to the end user.
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Deferred revenue at June 30, 2012 related to one customer of approximately $480,000 representing units not yet sold through by our customer and was
recognized in the Company’s second quarter of fiscal 2013 (as the right of return was waived). The related product costs of $429,000 were recorded as costs of
sales. As of June 30, 2013 the Company does not have any deferred revenue.
Sales Returns and Allowances
The Company evaluates its exposure to sales returns and allowances based on historical experience. The Company has not experienced returns during
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, and accordingly, the Company did not record sales returns and allowance.
Product Warranties
The Company evaluates its exposure to product warranty obligations based on historical experience. Our products are warrantied for two years unless
modified by a separate agreement. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 the Company recorded a warranty liability of approximately $11,000
and $12,000, respectively, and is included in accrued expenses on the Company’s balance sheet.
Shipping and Handling Costs
The Company records shipping and handling costs charged to customers as revenue and shipping and handling costs to cost of sales as incurred.
Impairment of Long-lived Assets
In accordance with authoritative guidance for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets, if indicators of impairment exist, the Company assesses the
recoverability of the affected long-lived assets by determining whether the carrying value of such assets can be recovered through the undiscounted future
operating cash flows.
If impairment is indicated, the Company measures the amount of such impairment by comparing the carrying value of the asset to the present value of
the expected future cash flows associated with the use of the asset. The Company believes future cash flows expected to be received from its long-lived assets
held in use will exceed the assets’ carrying values, and accordingly the Company has not recognized any impairment losses during the fiscal years ended June
30, 2013 and 2012.
Research and Development
The Company is actively engaged in new product development efforts. Research and development cost relating to possible future products are
expensed as incurred.
Income Taxes
The Company follows FASB ASC Topic No, 740, Income Taxes. Deferred tax assets or liabilities are recorded to reflect the future tax consequences of
temporary differences between the financial reporting basis of assets and liabilities and their tax basis at each year-end. These amounts are adjusted, as
appropriate, to reflect enacted changes in tax rates expected to be in effect when the temporary differences reverse.
The Company records deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities
and on operating loss carry forwards using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. A valuation allowance is
provided when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized.
We follow the provisions of FASB ASC Topic No.740 relating to uncertain tax provisions and have commenced analyzing filing positions in all of the
federal and state jurisdictions where the Company is required to file income tax returns, as well as all open tax years in these jurisdictions. As a result of
adoption, no additional tax liabilities have been recorded. There are no unrecognized tax benefits as of June 30, 2013 or June 30, 2012.
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Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share
The Company calculates basic earnings (loss) per common share by dividing net earnings or loss by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the periods. Diluted earnings (loss) per common share include the impact from all dilutive potential common shares relating to outstanding
convertible securities.
For the year ended June 30, 2013, basic and diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding were 46,592,334 and 50,553,184, respectively. The
potentially dilutive common shares outstanding at June 30, 2013, which include common shares underlying outstanding stock options and warrants, included in
the diluted weighted-average calculation were approximately 3,664,000.
For the year ended June 30, 2012, basic and diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding were 36,904,769. The Company incurred a net loss
for the twelve months ended June 30, 2012, and therefore, basic and diluted earnings per share for those periods are the same because the inclusion of all
potential common equivalent shares would be anti-dilutive. The potentially dilutive common shares outstanding at June 30, 2012, which include common shares
underlying outstanding stock options and warrants, were 2,386,622.
Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company does not use derivative instruments to hedge exposures to cash flow, market or foreign currency risk.
We evaluate free-standing derivative instruments (or embedded derivatives) to properly classify such instruments within equity or as liabilities in our
financial statements. The classification of a derivative instrument is reassessed at each reporting date. If the classification changes as a result of events during a
reporting period, the instrument is reclassified as of the date of the event that caused the reclassification. There is no limit on the number of times a contract may
be reclassified.
Instruments classified as derivative liabilities are recorded initially at their estimated fair value and are re-measured each reporting period (or upon
reclassification) and the change in fair value is recorded on our consolidated statement of operations in other (income) expense.
The Company follows Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic No. 815, Derivatives and
Hedging to classify and value warrant liabilities. Warrants classified as derivative liabilities are recorded at their fair values at the issuance date and are revalued
at each subsequent reporting date, using a Monte Carlo simulation (“MCS”). A MCS model uses a simulation technique to generate multiple random price paths
for the stock price to simulate many possible future outcomes, which are then discounted at the risk-free rate. These simulated paths are then averaged to
determine the fair value of the warrants (see Note 8).
New Accounting Standards
The Company reviews new accounting standards as issued. There have been no recently issued accounting standards, or changes in accounting
standards, that have had or are expected to have, a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
NOTE 4 - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment consist of:

Vehicles
Machinery and equipment
Office equipment
Furniture and equipment
Leasehold improvements

$

Less: Accumulated depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, net

$

June 30,
2013
59,000 $
59,000
86,000
34,000
—
238,000
(106,000)
132,000 $

June 30,
2012
59,000
59,000
53,000
25,000
1,000
197,000
(62,000)
135,000

Depreciation expense was approximately $44,000 and $30,000, for fiscal 2013 and 2012, respectively, and is included in selling and administrative
expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
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NOTE 5 - STOCKHOLDER NOTES PAYABLE AND LINE OF CREDIT
In October 2011, we entered into a revolving promissory note agreement with Esenjay Investments LLC (“Esenjay”), a stockholder for $1,000,000. The
revolving promissory note bears interest at 8%, is due on September 30, 2013, as amended, and is secured by substantially all of the assets of the Company. As
of June 30, 2013 the balance outstanding payable on the note was $1,000,000. There are no further funds available under this note agreement. As of September
30, 2013, we have not paid the amount due under the Revolving Note on the maturity date and are not in compliance with the terms of the Revolving Note. As a
result, the unpaid balance is subject to a default interest rate of 18% or the highest rate allowed by law (whichever is less) and Esenjay has a right to exercise its
rights as a secured party.
On March 7, 2012, we entered into an additional note payable agreement with the same stockholder for $250,000. The note is due on March 7, 2014
and bears interest at 8% per annum. As of June 30, 2013, the balance outstanding payable on the note was $250,000 there are no further funds available under
this note agreement.
On September 24, 2012, the Company entered into a Line of Credit with the same stockholder for $1,500,000. The revolving promissory note bears
interest at 8% per annum and principal and accrued interest are due and payable on September 24, 2014. During the twelve months ended June 30, 2013, the
Company made draws of approximately $1,218,000 under this agreement, and as of June 30, 2013, the balance outstanding was $1,218,000. Subsequent to
June 30, 2013, during the first quarter of fiscal 2014 the Company made additional draws of $403,000 under this agreement.
The Company is in the process of renegotiating an amendment to its stockholder notes payable and line of credit with Esenjay, to extend both the notes
and the line of credit maturity dates through December 31, 2015. In addition, further draws on the line of credit will be at a reduced interest rate. The proposed
amendment stipulates that Esenjay has an option to convert up to $400,000 of debt and interest to common stock at $0.06 per share by December 31, 2013.
Other proposed conversion options for Esenjay includes converting debt and interest in any fraction to common stock at $0.30 per share until debt maturity. As of
October 15, 2013, final approval to the amendment to the notes payable and the line of credit is pending approval of formal board resolution and formal sign-off
of the amendment.
NOTE 6 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
From time to time, we may be involved in litigation relating to claims arising out of our operations. As of June 30, 2013, we are not a party to any legal
proceedings that are expected, individually or in the aggregate, to have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or operating results.
NOTE 7 - STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
At June 30, 2013 the Company had 145,000,000 shares of common stock, par value of $0.001 authorized for issuance.
We may issue up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value of $0.001 in one or more classes or series within a class pursuant to our Articles of
Incorporation. There are currently no shares of preferred stock issued and outstanding.
Holders of common stock are entitled to receive dividends, when, as, and if declared by the Board of Directors, out of any assets legally available to the
Company. Dividends are declared and paid in an equal per-share amount on the outstanding shares of each series of common stock. To date the Board of
Directors has neither declared nor paid common stock dividends to shareholders.
Common Stock and Warrants
(a)

Private Placement – June and July 2012

In June 2012, we initiated a private placement of our common stock and warrants to accredited investors to purchase up to 8 Units, at a price of
$500,000 per Unit, with each Unit consisting of 1,207,185 shares of our common stock and 241,437 five (5) year warrants to purchase one share of our common
stock at an exercise price of $0.41 per share. The Company issued 2,813,000 shares and 562,551 warrants raising approximately $1,126,000 in net proceeds
through June 30, 2012, and in July 2012 of fiscal 2013 the Company issued 1,690,063 shares and 338,013 warrants raising net proceeds of approximately
$672,000.
(b)

Private Placement– August and October 2012

In August 2012, the Company commenced a private placement of its common stock and warrants to accredited investors to purchase up to 8 Units for a
purchase price of $250,000 per Unit, with each Unit consisting of 603,594 shares of our common stock and 120,719 five (5) year warrants to purchase one share
of common stock at an exercise price of $0.41 per share. In connection with this private placement, on August 31, 2012, we sold an aggregate of 603,594
shares of common stock and issued 120,719 warrants raising net proceeds of approximately $231,000.
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In October 2012, the Company continued the private placement of its common stock and warrants to an accredited investor to purchase up to 8 Units for
a purchase price of $250,000 per Unit, with each Unit consisting of 603,592 shares of our common stock and 120,718 five (5) year warrants to purchase one
share of common stock at an exercise price of $0.41 per share. In connection with this private placement, on October 30, 2012, we sold an aggregate of
241,436 shares of common stock and issued 48,287 warrants raising net proceeds of approximately $77,000. The October private placement closed out the
round of financing which began in June 2012.
The common stock purchased in the private placements and the common stock issuable upon exercise of warrants have piggyback registration rights.
The securities offered and sold in the private placement have not been registered under the Securities Act and may not be offered or sold in the United States
absent registration or an applicable exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act.
(c)

Option Exercises

During the twelve months ended June 30, 2013, in connection with the exercise of options by our former employees, we issued 549,552 shares of our
common stock for net proceeds of $22,000. The shares of common stock issued have not been registered under the Securities Act and have been issued
pursuant to exemption available under Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act.
Advisory Agreements
Baytree Capital - Related Party. On June 14, 2012, the Company entered into an Advisory Agreement (“Advisory Agreement”) with Baytree Capital, a
significant shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which Baytree Capital agreed to provide business and advisory services for 24 months in exchange for
100,000 restricted shares of our newly issued common stock at the commencement of each six (6) month period in return for its services, and a warrant to
purchase 1,837,777 restricted shares of our common stock for a period of five (5) years at an exercise price of $0.41 per share (“Advisory Agreement Warrants”).
In connection with this agreement, the estimated fair value of the warrants issued in the approximate amount of $3,258,000 was recorded as prepaid advisory
fees, which is expected to be amortized on a pro-rata basis over the term of the agreement. During the twelve months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, we
recorded expense of approximately $1,629,000 and $68,000 respectively based on the amortization of the prepaid advisory fees, as of June 30, 2013 the total
remaining balance of the prepaid advisory fees was approximately $1,561,000. Baytree Capital agreed to forego issuance of common stock to them for the first
six-month period beginning June 14, 2012.
In accordance with the Advisory Agreement, on December 14, 2012 which was the beginning of the second six-month period, a liability was recorded
based on that day’s stock price for the anticipated issuance of 100,000 shares of common stock. On February 25, 2013 we issued Baytree Capital 100,000
restricted shares of our newly issued common stock as previously accrued, for the second six-month period beginning June 14, 2012. These shares were valued
at $0.90 per share, based on the price per share of the Company’s common stock on February 25, 2013, for the total of $90,000 due to Baytree Capital. The
Company recorded $90,000 of prepaid advisory fees that were amortized through June 14, 2013, when the next 100,000 common shares were due to be issued
to Baytree Capital. The prepaid advisory fees were adjusted for amortization already recognized from the original issuance due date of December 14, 2012.
In accordance with the Advisory Agreement, on June 14, 2013 which was the beginning of the third six-month period, a liability was recorded based on
that day’s stock price for the anticipated issuance of 100,000 shares of common stock. These shares were valued at $0.60 per share, based on the price per
share of the Company’s common stock on June 14, 2013, for the total of $60,000, which is recorded on the Company’s balance sheet and is included in accrued
expenses. As of June 30, 2013, $55,000 remains in prepaid expense and $5,000 has been recognized as consulting expense. On July 9, 2013 we issued
Baytree Capital 100,000 restricted shares of our newly issued common stock as accrued for as of June 30, 2013, for the third six-month period.
Caro Capital, LLC. On April 4, 2013, the Company entered into an Advisory Agreement (“Agreement”) with Caro Capital, LLC (“Caro Capital”),
pursuant to which Caro Capital agreed to provide business and advisory services, management consulting, shareholder information and public relations for six (6)
months in exchange for 500,000 restricted shares of our newly issued common stock. Upon execution of the Agreement, Caro Capital was issued 100,000
shares of restricted stock per the contract terms, which were valued at $44,000 based on the closing price of our common stock on the issuance date. The
contract calls for subsequent issuance of 100,000 shares at 30-day increments to the first tranche. Per the terms of the Agreement, Caro Capital is entitled to the
second and third tranche issuance of 100,000 shares of restricted stock each. As of June 30, 2013 the Company has not issued these shares. The second
tranche shares were valued at $0.50 per share, based on the price per share of the Company’s common stock on May 4, 2013, when the second tranche shares
were due to be issued, for the total of $50,000 and the third tranche shares were valued at $0.32 per share, based on the price per share of the Company’s
common stock on June 4, 2013, when the third tranche shares were due to be issued, for the total of $32,000. The combined costs associated with the 200,000
shares to be issued of approximately $82,000 was recorded as consulting expense during the fourth quarter ended June 30, 2013 and is included in accrued
expenses as of June 30, 2013 on the Company’s balance sheet. On June 3, 2013, the Company terminated the Agreement with Caro Capital effective July 3,
2013.
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Warrant Activity
Warrant activity during the twelve months ended June 30, 2013 and related balances outstanding as of that date are reflected below:

Number
2,400,328
507,019
—
2,907,347

Shares purchasable under outstanding warrants at June 30, 2012
Stock purchase warrants issued
Stock purchase warrants exercised
Shares purchasable under outstanding warrants at June 30, 2013

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price Per
Share
$

Remaining
Contract
Term (#
years)
0.41
0.41
—
0.41

$

3.96 - 4.34

Stock-based Compensation
We adopted the Flux Power Option Plan in June 2012, under which 2,000,000 shares of common stock were reserved for issuance, and all stock
options of Flux’s outstanding as of June 14, 2012, whether or not exercised and whether or not vested were substituted by us with 4,536,949 new Company
options based on the Share Exchange Ratio. The substituted options continue to have, and are subject to, the substantially the same terms and conditions as
before, but are convertible into shares of our common stock, as adjusted given effect to the Share Exchange Ratio. However, we will not be able to grant
additional options under the Option Plan.
Activity in options during the twelve months ended June 30, 2013 and related balances outstanding as of that date are reflected below:

Number of
Shares
4,536,949
—
(549,552)
(1,460,009 )
2,527,388
1,997,279

Outstanding at June 30, 2012
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited and cancelled
Outstanding at June 30, 2013
Exercisable at June 30, 2013

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price
$
0.17

$
$

0.15
0.20

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contract
Term (# years)

5.85
6.47

Stock-based compensation expense recognized in our consolidated statements of operations for the twelve months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
includes compensation expense for stock-based options and awards granted, based on the grant date fair value. For options and awards granted, expenses are
amortized under the straight-line method over the expected vesting period. Stock-based compensation expense recognized in the condensed consolidated
statements of operations has been reduced for estimated forfeitures of options that are subject to vesting. Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and
revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates.
We allocated stock-based compensation expense included in the consolidated statements of operations for employee option grants and non-employee
option grants as follows:
Years ended June 30,
Research and development
General and administration
Total stock-based compensation expense

$
$

2013
10,000 $
84,000
94,000 $
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2012
8,000
37,000
45,000

The Company uses the Black-Scholes valuation model to calculate the fair value of stock options. The fair value of stock options was measured at the
grant date using the assumptions (annualized percentages) in the table below:
2013
100%
0.8% to 3.0%
5%
0%
5-10 years

Expected volatility
Risk free interest rate
Forfeiture rate
Dividend yield
Expected term

2012
100%
0.8% to 3.0%
5%
0%
5-10 years

The remaining amount of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense at June 30, 2013 is approximately $124,000, which is expected to be
recognized over the weighted average period of 5.85 years.
The following table summarizes by price range the number, weighted average exercise price and weighted average life (in years) of options outstanding
and the number and weighted average exercise price of exercisable options as of June 30, 2013.
Price Range

Total Outstanding
Number
of
Shares

$0.04 – $0.410
Total

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price
Life
0.15
5.85
2,527,388 $
2,527,388 $

0.15

5.85

Total Exercisable
Weighted
Number
Average
of
Exercise
Shares
Price

1,997,279 $

0.20

1,997,279 $

0.20

The intrinsic value of exercisable options at June 30, 2013 was approximately $96,000.

NOTE 8 – Warrant Derivative Liability
At June 30, 2013 there were 2,907,347 outstanding warrants classified as derivative liabilities due to exercise price re-set provisions included in the
underlying warrant agreements.
Warrants classified as derivative liabilities are recorded at their fair values at the issuance date and are revalued at each subsequent reporting date,
using a Monte Carlo simulation model. Warrants were determined to have a fair value per share and aggregate value as of June 30, 2013 and in aggregate
value as of June 30, 2012 as follows:

Issued Warrants
June 2012 Warrants
July 2012 Warrants
August 2012 Warrants
October 2012 Warrants
Advisory Agreement Warrants
Total

562,551
338,013
120,719
48,287
1,837,777
2,907,347

Fair Value Per
Share $ as of
June 30, 2013
$
$
$
$
$

0.05
0.05
0.05
0.05
0.05
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Total Fair Value in
Aggregate $ as of
June 30, 2013

Total Fair Value in
Aggregate $ as of
June 30, 2012

$
$
$
$
$
$

$
$
$
$
$
$

27,000
17,000
6,000
3,000
90,000
143,000

1,158,000
—
—
—
3,785,000
4,943,000

Significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the warrants classified as derivative liabilities at June 30, 2013 are summarized below:
Risk-free interest rate
Expected life (average)
Stock price (based on prices on valuation date)
Exercise price
Expected volatility

$
$

1.16 – 1.02%
3.96 – 4.34 years
0.10
0.41
100%

NOTE 9 – INCOME TAXES
Pursuant to the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 740 Income Taxes deferred income taxes reflect the net effect of (a) temporary difference between
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial purposes and the amounts used for income tax reporting purposes, and (b) net operating loss
carryforwards. No net provision for refundable Federal income taxes has been made in the accompanying statement of operations because no recoverable
taxes were paid previously. Significant components of the Company’s net deferred tax assets at June 30, 2013 and 2012 are shown below. A valuation
allowance of approximately $2,841,000 and $1,453,000 has been established to offset the net deferred tax assets as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively,
due to uncertainties surrounding the Company’s ability to generate future taxable income to realize these assets.
The Company is subject to taxation in the United States and California. The Company’s tax years for 2009 and forward are subject to examination by the
United States and California tax authorities due to the carry forward of unutilized net operating losses and research and development credits (if any).
The Company has not filed federal or state income tax returns through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, but it is in the process of preparing the
appropriate forms and submitting them to appropriate governmental agency.
We have incurred losses since inception, so no current income tax provision or benefit has been recorded. Significant components of our net deferred
tax assets are shown in the table below.
Year Ended June 30,
2013
2012
Deferred Tax Assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards
Other, net
Net deferred tax assets
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets
Net deferred tax assets

$

$

2,727,000 $
114,000
2,841,000
(2,841,000 )
— $

1,275,000
178,000
1,453,000
(1,453,000 )
—

The Company recognizes windfall tax benefits associated with the exercise of stock options directly to stockholders' equity only when realized.
Accordingly, deferred tax assets are not recognized for net operating loss carryforwards from windfall tax benefits occurring from January 1, 2006 onward. At
June 30, 2013, deferred tax assets do not include excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation of approximately $216,000.
At June 30, 2013, the Company had unused net operating loss carryovers of approximately $6,851,000 and $6,813,000 that are available to offset future
federal and state taxable income respectively. These operating losses begin to expire in 2030. Both the federal and state net operating loss carryovers at June
30, 2013 may be adjusted once tax returns are filed.
The provision for income taxes on earnings subject to income taxes differs from the statutory federal rate at June 30, 2013 and 2012, due to the
following:

Federal income taxes at 34%
State income taxes, net
Warrants
Change in the estimated fair market value of derivatives
Other True Ups, if any
Change in valuation allowance
Provision for income taxes

$

$
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Year Ended June 30,
2013
2012
120,000 $
(811,000)
21,000
(139,000)
685,000
—
(2,283,000)
210,000
69,000
61,000
1,388,000
679,000
— $
—

As of June 30, 2013, we have not yet completed our analysis of the deferred tax assets relating to federal and state net operating losses. Pursuant to
Internal Revenue Code Sections 382, use of our net operating loss carryforwards could be limited if a cumulative change in ownership of more than 50% occurs
within a three-year period. We plan to complete a Section 382 analysis regarding whether there are limitations of the net operating loss prior to utilizing any net
operating losses.
On July 13, 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, subsequently codified in ASC 740, Income Taxes, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in an entity's financial, and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attributes for financial statement disclosure of tax positions
taken or expected to be taken on a tax return. Under ASC 740, the impact of an uncertain income tax position on the income tax return must be recognized at
the largest amount that is more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon audit by the relevant taxing authority. An uncertain income tax position will not be
recognized if it has less than a 50% likelihood of being sustained. Additionally, ASC 740 provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. ASC 740 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006.
We follow the provisions of ASC 740 relating to uncertain tax provisions and have commenced analyzing filing positions in all of the federal and state
jurisdictions where it is required to file income tax returns, as well as all open tax years in these jurisdictions. As a result of adoption, no additional tax liabilities
have been recorded. There are no unrecognized tax benefits as of June 30, 2013 or June 30, 2012.
The Company’s practice is to recognize interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense.
The Company is subject to taxation in the U.S. and state jurisdictions. The Company’s tax years for 2009 and forward, when filed, will be subject to
examination by the IRS and tax years 2009 and forward are subject to examination by California tax authorities. The Company is currently not under examination
by any taxing authorities.
NOTE 10 – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
We follow FASB ASC Topic No. 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (“ASC 820”) in connection with financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value on a recurring basis subsequent to initial recognition.
ASC 820 requires that assets and liabilities carried at fair value will be classified and disclosed in one of the following categories:
Level 1: Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.
Level 2: Observable market based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data
The hierarchy noted above requires us to minimize the use of unobservable inputs and to use observable market data, if available, when determining fair
value.
The fair value of our recorded derivative liabilities is determined based on unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data, which is a level
3 classification. We record derivative liabilities on our balance sheet at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in our consolidated statements of
operations.
Following is a summary as of the reporting date of the fair values and applicable level within the fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at
fair value on a recurring basis:
At June 30, 2013:

Description:
Warrant derivative liabilities

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets
for Identical
Assets

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs

(Level 1)

(Level 2)

(Level 3)

$

-
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$

-

$

143,000

At June 30, 2012:
Quoted Prices in
Active Markets
for Identical
Assets
(Level 1)
Description:
Warrant derivative liabilities

$

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

Significant Other
Observable Inputs
(Level 2)
-

$

-

$

4,943,000

The table below sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of our Level 3 financial instruments for the twelve months ended June 30, 2013:
Estimated fair
value of new
derivative
liabilities

Balance at
June 30,
2012
Warrant derivative liabilities

$

4,943,000

$

931,000

Change in estimated
fair value
recognized in results
of operations
(5,731,000 ) $

$

Balance at
June 30,
2013
143,000

The fair value of new warrant derivative liabilities and the change in the estimated fair value of derivative liabilities that we recorded during the twelve
months ended June 30, 2013, related to warrants issued in connection with our private placement transactions and Baytree Advisory Agreement (see Note 6).
Quantitative Information about Significant Unobservable Inputs used in Level 3 Fair Value Measurements
The following table represents the Plan’s level 3 financial instruments at June 30, 2013, the valuation techniques used to measure the fair value of those
financial instruments, and the significant unobservable inputs and the ranges of values for those inputs:

Instrument
Warrant derivative liabilities

Fair Value
$

143,000

Principal Valuation
Technique
Monte Carlo simulation

Significant
Unobservable Inputs
Volatility
Risk free rates
Probability of subsequent
financing

Range of Significant
Input Values
100%
1.02% - 1.16%

100%

NOTE 11 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Stockholder Agreements
During 2009, the Company entered into a cancelable Term Sheet Agreement with a LHV Power Corporation, an entity owned by James Gevarges, one
of our major shareholders. Mr. Gevarges is also the Chief Executive Officer and President of LHV Power. Pursuant to the Term Sheet Agreement, Flux Power
was appointed as a distributor of LHV Power battery charging products allowing Flux Power to sell the products either separately or as part of an energy storage
solution. Additionally, Flux Power was required to develop a microprocessor control board (“MCB”), and the associated software to enable communication
between the parties’ respective products which entitles Flux Power to royalties for any such units sold by the related entity. Pursuant to the Term Sheet
Agreement Flux Power may purchase the products at the then current price list for distributors. Further, under the Term Sheet Agreement, if LHV Power sells its
products to a different distributor Flux Power is entitled to a distribution fee equal to 20% of the gross profits on such sale. This distribution fee and royalties are
capped at a total of $200,000. The chargers are not currently under commercial production and therefore no Distribution and Royalty Fee has been received by
Flux Power. On September 1, 2010, with our consent, LHV assigned the Term Sheet Agreement to Current Ways Inc. a different company that is owned by Mr.
Gevarges. The parties are also subject to restrictions on the use and disclosure of confidential information of the other party which ended April 1, 2013.
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Pursuant to our standard purchase order terms and conditions, during the twelve months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Company purchased
approximately $29,000 and $85,000, respectively, of charger products from Current Ways, Inc., which was not subject to the distribution fee or royalties referred
to above under the Term Sheet Agreement.
On August 1, 2009, the Company entered into a Manufacturing Implementation Agreement (the “Manufacturing Agreement”) with LHV Power pursuant
to which Flux Power granted LHV Power a right of first refusal to manufacture our battery management systems and agreed to pay for any specialized tooling
LHV Power may require to manufacture Flux Power’s battery management systems. Under the Manufacturing Agreement, Flux Power will retain ownership of all
intellectual property developed as part of the Manufacturing Agreement, which expires on August 1, 2014. During the twelve months ended June 30, 2013 and
2012, the Company paid approximately $108,000 and $263,000, respectively, to LHV Power pursuant to the Manufacturing Agreement.
NOTE 12 – CONCENTRATIONS
Credit Risk
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of temporary cash investments and
unsecured trade accounts receivable. The Company maintains cash balances at a financial institution in San Diego, California. Accounts at this institution are
secured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. As of June 30, 2013, cash totaled approximately $20,000, which consists of funds held in a non-interest
bearing bank deposit account. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Management believes that the Company is not exposed to any
significant credit risk with respect to its cash.
Customer Concentrations
During the twelve months ended June 30, 2013, the Company had one major customer that represented more than 10% of its revenues on an individual
basis, or approximately $480,000 or 62% of the Company’s total revenues which was a result of the Company recognizing deferred revenue as previously
reported. Revenue from our customer, Wheego Electric Cars (“Wheego”) is recognized on the sell-through method with their customer, which was completed
during the Company’s fourth quarter of fiscal 2013.
During the twelve months ended June 30, 2012, the Company had four major customers that represented more than 10% of its revenues on an
individual basis, or approximately $4,798,000 or 81% of the Company’s total revenues.
The following table represents customers that are more than 10% of its revenues on an individual basis for the twelve months ended June 30, 2013 and
2012:
2013
Customers:
Wheego
Greentech Automotive
EPIC Boats (*)
Artisan Vehicle Systems
Boulder EV

$

Subtotal
Other customers
Total revenue

$

2012

480,000
—
—
—
—

62% $
—
—
2,036,000
—
1,135,000
—
1,044,000
—
583,000

—
34%
19%
18%
10%

480,000

62%

4,798,000

81%

292,000

38%

1,132,000

19%

100% $ 5,930,000

100%

772,000

(*) Related party
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Suppliers/Vendor Concentrations
We obtain a limited number of components and supplies included in our products from a small group of suppliers. During the fiscal years ended June 30,
2013 we had one supplier who accounted for more than 10% of our total purchases. LHV Power accounted for 34% of our total purchases.
During the fiscal years ended June 2012, we had one supplier who accounted for more than 10% of our total purchases. Global Fluid Power Solutions,
LLC, providers of lithium batteries manufactured in China, accounted for 56%, of our total purchases.
In the past we have sourced Lithium batteries from a number of suppliers. We are realigning our battery sourcing to improve consistency,
responsiveness, and quality. As a result, we have signed a non-exclusive supply agreement with Henan Huanyu New Energy Technology Ltd, a Chinese
company.
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CERTIFICATIONS OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
I, Ronald F. Dutt, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Flux Power Holdings, Inc.
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and
have:
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;
b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d. Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
(the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.
Date: October 15, 2013
By: /s/ Ronald F. Dutt
Name: Ronald F. Dutt
Title: Interim Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

CERTIFICATIONS OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
I, Ronald F. Dutt, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Flux Power Holdings, Inc.
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and
have:
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;
b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d. Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter
(the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant’s
auditors and the audit committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.
Date: October 15, 2013
By: /s/ Ronald F. Dutt
Name: Ronald F. Dutt
Title: Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of Flux Power Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended June 30, 2013 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, in the capacities and on the date indicated below, hereby certifies
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to his knowledge:
1.

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2.

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the Company.

Date: October 15, 2013
By: /s/ Ronald F. Dutt
Name: Ronald F. Dutt
Title: Interim Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of Flux Power Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended June 30, 2013 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, in the capacities and on the date indicated below, hereby certifies
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to his knowledge:
1.

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2.

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the Company.

Date: October 15, 2013
By: /s/ Ronald F. Dutt
Name: Ronald F. Dutt
Title: Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

